
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given by the Board of Trustees that Granger-Hunter Improvement District will 
hold a Board Meeting at 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, November 16, 2021, at its main office located at 2888 South 
3600 West, West Valley City, Utah. Trustees and members of the public are able to attend this meeting in 

person or electronically through www.ghid.org. 
 

Agenda   
A. GENERAL 

1. Call to order – Welcome – Report those present for the record 
2. Consider approval of the October 19, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 
3. Discuss potential conflicts of interest 

 
B. OUR COMMUNITY 

1. Tentative Budget & Rate Study Presentation 
2. Public Comments 
3. Review, discuss & consider approval of the 2022 Tentative Budget 
4. Consider the date for the Public Hearing on the 2022 Tentative Budget, Rate & Fee 

Increases, and Property Tax Increase 
5. Consider Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between Utah Department of 

Workforce Services and Granger-Hunter Improvement District 
 

C. OUR TEAM 
1. 2021 Strategic Plan Initiatives Update  
2. Review 2022 Board meeting schedule calendar 
3. Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District Update 

 
D. OUR OPERATIONS 

1. Fraud Risk Assessment 
2. Consider Approval of a Contract with Zions Public Finance, Inc. for Municipal Advisory 

Services  
3. Review & discuss Financial Report for October 2021 
4. Review & discuss Paid Invoice Report for October 2021 
5. Water maintenance update 
6. Wastewater maintenance update 
7. Water supply review 
8. Capital Projects update 
9. Engineering Department update 

 
E. CLOSED SESSION 

 
F. BOARD MEMBERS INPUT, REPORTS, FOLLOW-UP ITEMS OR QUESTIONS 

 
G. CALENDAR 

1.  The next board meeting will be December 14, 2021 
 

1



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

1 

                                                MINUTES OF THE 
GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING  
 

The Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District (GHID) was held 
Tuesday, October 19, 2021, at 2:00 P.M. at the District office located at 2888 S. 3600 W., West Valley 
City, Utah. 
 
This meeting was conducted electronically in accordance with the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act 
(Utah Code Ann. (1953) §§ 52-4-1 et seq.) and Chapter 7.12 of the Administrative Policy and Procedures 
Manual (“Electronic Meetings”). 

 
Trustees Present: 
Debra Armstrong             Chair   
Corey Rushton              Trustee – left meeting at 4:00 p.m. 
Roger Nordgren              Trustee  
 
Staff Members Present: 
Jason Helm             General Manager 
Todd Marti             Assistant General Manager/District Engineer 
Troy Stout             Assistant General Manager/Chief Operating Officer 
Michelle Ketchum                       Director of Administration 
Dustin Martindale            Director of Water Systems  
Ricky Necaise             Director of Wastewater - Excused 
Victor Narteh              Director of Engineering 
Justin Gallegos            Director of Information Technology 
Austin Ballard             Controller 
Dakota Cambruzzi            Human Resource Manager 
Kristy Johnson            Executive Assistant 
Brent Rose             Legal Counsel – Clyde Snow & Sessions PC - Excused 
 
Guests: 
Keith Larson Project Manager, Bowen, Collins & Associate – Left meeting following presentation 
Aaron Montgomery Financial Analyst, Zions Public Finance - Left meeting following presentation 
Christina Osborn J-U-B Engineers – Left meeting following presentation 
Ian Bailey GIS Specialist, GHID - Electronically 
Darcy Brantly Accountant, GHID – Electronically 
Jeremy Gregory Staff Engineer, GHID - Electronically 
Debra Harvey Customer Service, GHID - Electronically 
Taylor Gomm Customer Service, GHID – Electronically 
Teresa Higgs Customer Service, GHID – Electronically 
Idanely Orosco Customer Service, GHID – Electronically 
Michael Wear Admin Services Division Supervisor, GHID - Electronically 
Drew Ovard Information Technology Division Manager, GHID - Electronically 
Brooke Petersen Administrative Assistant, GHID - Electronically 
Roger Ruff Member of the Community - Electronically 
 
A copy of the exhibits referred to in these minutes is attached and incorporated by this reference. The 
exhibits are also included in the official minute books maintained by Granger-Hunter Improvement 
District.     

2



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

2 

             

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

Public Comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approval of the 
September 21, 2021 

Open Meetings Training 
& the September 21, 
2021 Board Meeting 

Minutes 
 
    

Conflicts of interest 
 

OUR COMMUNITY 
Consider Approval of 

Purchase of Iperl Meters 
to MountainLand 
Supply Company 

 
 

OUR OPERATIONS 
Consider the Award of 
Construction Contract 

to Nelson Brothers 
Construction for the 

20B: Rushton 
Groundwater Treatment 

Plant Project 
 

Consider Approval of 
Amendment #4 to the 

Rushton Groundwater 
Treatment Plant 

Engineering Contract 
with J-U-B Engineers 

for Construction 
Administration Services 

 
 
 
 

 At 2:00 P.M. Debra Armstrong called the meeting to order and recognized all 
those present.   
 
Jason Helm shared a public comment that was received by telephone call.  
 
Mark Hansen a District customer at 3563 Highlander Way said that the 3:00 
p.m. Board Meeting time is problematic for those who work and want to attend. 
Mr. Hansen would also be interested in becoming more involved with the 
District Board Meetings. 
 
A motion to approve the Open Meetings Training Minutes from September 21, 
2021 and the Board Meeting Minutes from September 21, 2021, was made by 
Debra Armstrong, followed by a second from Roger Nordgren  
 
The motion passed as follows; 
 
Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                Nordgren – aye 
 
There were none. 
 
Jason Helm asked the Board to consider an approval of purchase of 663 – 3/4” 
Iperl Meters to MountainLand Supply Company in the amount of $94,977.59 
Roger Nordgren made a motion to approve the purchase as noted.  Following a 
second from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows: 
 
Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 
 
Todd Marti asked the Board to consider an award of a Construction Contract to 
Nelson Brothers Construction in the amount of $9,843,621.38 for the Rushton 
Groundwater Treatment Plant Project. After a discussion regarding the water 
treatment process, Corey Rushton made a motion to approve the contract as 
noted.  Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows: 
 
Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 
 
 
Mr. Marti asked the Board to consider an approval of Amendment #4 to Rushton 
Groundwater Treatment Plant Engineering Contract with J-U-B Engineers in the 
amount of $719,000.00 for Construction Administration Services. Roger 
Nordgren made a motion to approve the amendment as noted.  Following a 
second from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows: 
 
Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 
 
 
 
 
 

3



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

3 

Consider Approval of 
Construction Contract 

to Cody Ekker 
Construction, Inc. for 

the 21G: Manhole 
Collar Reconstruction 

Project 
 
 

OUR TEAM 
Water and Sewer Rate 

Alternatives – Review of 
Previous Discussions 

and Decisions, 
Recommendation of 

Rates for All 
Alternatives, 

Wastewater Rates – 
Fixed vs. Volume 

Charge, Review Three 
Detailed Revenue 

Alternatives & Future 
Bonding Scenarios 

 
OUR OPERATIONS 

Review & Discuss 
Financial Report for 

September 2021 
 
 
 

Review & Discuss Paid 
Invoice Report for  

September 2021  
 
 
 
 

Water Maintenance 
Update 

 
Wastewater 

Maintenance Update 
 

Water Supply Review 
 
 
 

Mr. Marti asked the Board to consider an approval of a Construction Contract to 
Cody Ekker Construction, Inc in the amount of $92,000.00 for the 21G: Manhole 
Collar Reconstruction Project. After a brief discussion regarding the project 
being routine maintenance, Debra Armstrong made a motion to approve the 
contract as noted.  Following a second from Corey Rushton, the motion passed 
as follows: 
 
Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 
 
Keith Larson, the project manager for the master plan and rate study from 
Bowen, Collins & Associates, presented the rate study update.  Mr. Larson 
reviewed the decisions made in the September 21, 2021 Board Meeting. A 
discussion took place regarding the rate recommendations, rate alternatives and 
future bond scenarios.  Following the discussion, the Board agreed to consider 
the following:  increase water usage rates on the current 3rd tier and add a 4th tier, 
implement drought contingency rates, and change wastewater rates from a solely 
base rate to a base rate plus volume.  Mr. Larson will be finishing the master plan 
report for the November 16, 2021 Board Meeting.  A brief discussion took place 
regarding drought mitigation rates. – See the Water and Sewer Rate Alternatives 
report attached to these minutes for details.  
 
 
 
 
Austin Ballard summarized the September Financial Report. Mr. Ballard 
mentioned water sales are still below revenue targets.  Mr. Ballard noted that 
spending has been decreased to offset the lower revenues. A discussion took 
place regarding the Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District contract.  Jason 
Helm mentioned that GHID will be able to carry over 3% of the unused contract 
into 2022.  Mr. Ballard presented the 2021 Cost Savings Summary.   
 
Mr. Ballard discussed the September check report. The September check report 
totaled $3,704,636.37 coming from five categories; Jordan Valley (36%), Central 
Valley (24%), infrastructure (20%), taxes, payroll and benefits (9%), and other 
(11%).   
 
Corey Rushton asked to be excused at 4:00 p.m. to attend another meeting. 
 
Troy Stout presented the water maintenance report. – See the Water Systems 
Update report attached to these minutes for details. 
 
Mr. Stout presented the wastewater maintenance report. – See the Wastewater 
Systems Update report attached to these minutes for details.  
 
Todd Marti discussed the water supply report. – See the Water Supply Review 
report attached to these minutes for details. 
 

4



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

4 

 

Capital Projects Update 
 

 
Engineering Department 

Update 
 

OUR TEAM 
2021 Strategic Plan 
Initiatives Update 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

BOARD MEMBERS 
INPUT, REPORTS, 

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS 
OR QUESTIONS 

 
ADJOURNED 

 

Mr. Marti presented the capital projects update. – See the Capitol Projects 
Update report attached to these minutes for details. 
 
Mr. Marti discussed the engineering department update. – See the Engineering 
Department Update report attached to these minutes for details.  
 
Jason Helm presented the 2021 Strategic Plan Initiatives Update.  Some brief 
discussion took place.  Debra Armstrong and Roger Nordgren recommended 
that this report be presented again in the November 16, 2021 Board Meeting to 
include Corey Rushton. 
 
A closed session was not needed for this meeting. 
 
There were none. 
 
 
 
 
Inasmuch as all agenda items have been satisfied, Debra Armstrong made a 
motion to adjourn the meeting.  Following a second from Roger Nordgren, the 
motion passed as follows and the meeting adjourned at 4:42 P.M.  
 
Armstrong – aye                      Rushton – had left meeting             Nordgren – aye 
 
 
Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
 
Austin Ballard, Clerk 
 
 
__________________________________________ 

5



 

 
Our 

Community 
• Tentative Budget & Rate Study Presentation 

• Public Comments 
• Review, discuss & consider approval of the 2022 

Tentative Budget  
• Public Hearing Date 

• Approval Item 

6



2022 Budget Presentation
Improving quality of life today – creating a better tomorrow.

7



2022 Budget 
Overview

• Overview of GHID

• 2022 Revenue & 
Rates

• 2022 Expenditures

• Long-Term Planning

• Next Steps

Granger-Hunter Improvement DistrictNovember 2021 2
8



Granger-Hunter Improvement District
At-a-glance

ESTABLISHED IN 1950

• 25 square mile service 
area

• ~28,000 accounts, 
130,000 residents

• 76 employees in 5 
different departments 
(Water, Wastewater, 
I.T./Operations, 
Administration & 
Engineering)

WATER SYSTEM

• 8 deep wells, 9 
reservoirs, 380 miles of 
pipelines

• 3,400 fire hydrants

• 8 billion gallons 
delivered each year

• ~70% of water 
purchased from Jordan 
Valley Water 
Conservancy District

WASTEWATER SYSTEM

• 300 miles of pipelines, 
6,700 manholes

• 12 lift stations

• Wastewater treated by 
Central Valley Water 
Reclamation Facility

Granger-Hunter improvement DistrictNovember 2021 3
9



Master Plan 
& Rate Study

• In January 2021, 
Granger-Hunter 
began a Master Plan 
& Rate Study to 
better align revenue 
with necessary 
expenditures.

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTNovember 2021 4
10



Revenue Needs Conclusions

TOTAL REVENUE NEEDS

• To sustainably fund 
the water and 
sewer system, 
Granger-Hunter 
Improvement 
District needs to 
increase total 
revenues by 
approximately 30%

SCHEDULE

• Grants, bonding 
and project 
phasing can be 
used to adjust how 
quickly this 
increase is 
implemented

SOURCES OF REVENUE

• Increases in 
revenue can come 
from a 
combination of 
sources

Granger-Hunter Improvement DistrictNovember 2021 5
11



Rate Alternatives
Option Objectives Required Bonding

Option 1

• Maximize bonding to minimize required rate increases up 
front. 

• No water rate increases in 2022 other than adjustments 
to water tiers

• No sewer rate increases in 2022

$55 Million

Option 2

• Use a little higher rate increases up front to reduce total 
bonding. 

• No water rate increases in 2022 other than adjustments 
to water tiers

• No sewer rate increases in 2022

$35 Million

Option 3

• Bond only as needed for cash flow
• No water rate increases in 2022 other than adjustments 

to water tiers
• Adjust sewer rates for CVWRF costs in 2022

$30 Million

Recommended 
Hybrid

• No water rate increases in 2022 other than adjustments 
to water tiers

• Adjust sewer rates for CVWRF costs in 2022
• Bond only as needed for cash flow

$27 Million
12



Direction from Last Meeting

PREFERRED APPROACH

• Hybrid of Option 1 
– Maximize 
Bonding and 
Option 3 – Adjust 
Sewer for CVWRF 
Costs

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENTS

• Incorporate 
regular 
adjustments to 
property tax  
(assumed every 
three years)

NEW 
RECOMMENDATIONS

• Add sewer volume costs
• Drop sewer base rates
• Don’t drop rates quite as far 

as would be suggested for 
revenue neutrality

• Drop rates far enough that a 
prudent, average indoor 
water user will not see an 
overall sewer rate increase

• Implement bonding as 
needed to gradually phase-
in remaining rate increases 
while still funding capital 
projects at a sustainable 
level

Granger-Hunter Improvement DistrictNovember 2021 7
13



Water – Residential Tier Design

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

 -  10,000  20,000  30,000  40,000  50,000  60,000

Quantity (kgal)

Normalized Tiered Rate

KID Magna Water Tay-Ben West Jordan GHID

Proposed Tier Adjustments
- Increase Tier 3 to 1.25 Ratio 
- New Tier 4 at 45,000 and 1.7 Ratio

Approximate Cost 
of Service

14



$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

$80,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

Hybrid Option: 10-Year Revenue and Expenditures 

Operating and Non-Operating Expenses CVWRF - Debt Service CVWRF - Operations

Debt Service Non-SRF Capital SRF Capital

Target Annual Capital Costs Revenue Projected Revenue

Property Tax Income Bond Proceeds

*Bond issued in 2022 for 2022 capital expenditures
**Bond issued in 2024 for 2024 capital expenditures

15



10

Hybrid Option – 5-year Rate Plan

16



11

Recommended Hybrid Option

• Sewer Usage Rate is introduced in 2022 at $1.50 per 1,000 gallons. 

• Usage is based on flow measurements from December through April

• Base rates decreased by approximately 28% to negate increase in monthly bill amount due 
to usage rate introduction but still account for a portion of the increase in the CVWRF costs

• Initial rate increases of 8% in 2023 through 2025 for all rates

• Rate increases of 6% in 2026 through 2028 for all rates

• Annual rate increase of 3% starting in 2029 and continuing thereafter for all rates

• Bonds of $17MM in 2022 and $10MM in 2024 for capital costs

• Includes property tax increases every 3 years to maintain tax revenue as 17% of 
GHID operating expenses

17



November 2021 Granger-Hunter Improvement District 12

Major Expenditure 
Requirements

18



Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility Rehabilitation

• GHID responsible for ~27%, 

• Expenditures were $5.6M in 2019, will be $14.7M in 202219



2022-23 Large Water Projects - $35.5 M*

Granger-Hunter Improvement DistrictNovember 2021 14

Westward/Sundown 
Cast Iron Pipe 
Replacements

$8.5M

Rushton Groundwater 
Treatment Plant

$11M

Kent Pump 
Station 

Replacement 
$8M

Redwood 
Road Pipeline 
Replacement 

$8M

*does not include all smaller projects

20



Granger-Hunter Improvement DistrictNovember 2021 15

Redwood 
Road Sewer 

Upgrade
$5M

4100 South 
Sewer Upsizing 

$1M

Various Pipe Lining 
& Manhole 

Rehabilitation 
$1M

Pioneer Lift 
Station 

Replacement
$4M

2022-23 Large Wastewater Projects - $11M*
*does not include all smaller projects

21



20XX Sample Footer Text 16

$0.0 Million

$2.0 Million

$4.0 Million

$6.0 Million

$8.0 Million

$10.0 Million

$12.0 Million

$14.0 Million

$16.0 Million

$18.0 Million

$20.0 Million

B
u

d
g

e
ta

ry
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
st

Replacement Year

Estimated Water Distribution System Pipe Replacement Needs

< 6 in. 6-8 in. 10 - 12 in. 14 - 20 in. 24 - 30 in. Average 10-yr Moving Avg

22



Proposed 2022 Rates

November 2021 Granger-Hunter Improvement District 17

Water Rates by Customer Type
Tier 1 

(0-7,000 gal.)
Tier 2

(7,001-15,000 gal.)
Tier 3 

(15,001-45,000 gal.)
Tier 4 

(45,001+ gal.)

Single Family - Current $1.77 $1.90 $2.05 $2.05 

Single Family - Proposed $1.77 $1.90 $2.20 $3.00 

Multi-Unit Residential – Current $1.90 $1.90 $1.90 $1.90 

Multi-Unit Residential - Proposed $2.10 $2.10 $2.10 $2.10 

Non-Residential - Current $1.77 $1.90 $2.05 $2.05 

Non-Residential - Proposed $2.10 $2.10 $2.10 $2.10 

Wastewater Rates by Customer Type Base Rate CVWRF Fee
Volume

(per 1,000 gal.)
Single Family – Current $21.50 $5.00 -

Single Family – Proposed $15.50 $5.00 $1.50
Multi-unit – Current (per REU) $18.50 $5.00 -

Multi-unit – Proposed (per REU) $13.92 $5.00 $1.50
Non-residential – Current (REU) $21.50 $5.00 -

Non-residential – Proposed (REU) $15.50 $5.00 $1.50

23



Proposed Single Family 
Drought Rates

November 2021 Granger-Hunter Improvement District 18

Drought Tier
Tier 1 

(0-7,000 gal.)

Tier 2
(7,001-15,000 

gal.)

Tier 3 
(15,001-45,000 

gal.)

Tier 4 
(45,001+ 

gal.)

Tier 0 - No Drought
$1.77 $1.90 $2.20 $3.00 

Tier 1 - Voluntary Water 
Conservation $1.77 $1.90 $2.20 $3.00 

Tier 2 - Voluntary Water 
Restrictions $1.77 $1.90 $2.20 $3.00 

Tier 3 - Mandatory Water 
Restrictions $1.77 $1.90 $3.30 $6.00 

Tier 1 
(0-7,000 gal.)

Tier 2
(7,001-15,000 

gal.)

Tier 3 
(15,001-35,000 

gal.)

Tier 4 
(35,001+ 

gal.)

Tier 4 - Emergency Water 
Restrictions $1.77 $1.90 $3.30 $6.00 

24



Example Rate Changes

November 2021 Granger-Hunter Improvement District 19

Example Singe-family Bill Change 
(average throughout year)

TOTAL BILL 
(2021)

TOTAL BILL 
(2022)

#1 (2,000 gallons winter) $76 $73

#2 (6,000 gallons winter) $79 $83

#3 (12,000 gallons winter) $85 $97

25



0 0.0005 0.001 0.0015 0.002 0.0025

Taylorsville-Bennion

Magna Water

Kearns ID

Granger-Hunter

Granger-Hunter Proposed

2021 Property Tax Rates

REVENUES – PROPERTY TAX RATE

History of GHID Property Tax Rate:

• GHID property tax rate last raised in 2006

• Inflation has risen 28.4 % cumulatively since 2006

Fire 
Protection, 

27%

Public 
Health, 15%

Groundwater 
Management, 

2%

RDA 
Development, 

4%

Future 
Bonding, 

52%

Property Tax Revenue Allocation

26



REVENUES – WASTEWATER SURCHARGE RATE TABLES

• Reduced Tiers from 24 to 18 
• More Uniform Rate Increase Curve
• Increase Contaminant Production 

Deterrent
• Reduce Contaminant Levels
• Forecasted Net Zero Revenue Change

Wastewater Surcharge 
Rate  Tables

27



Fee Updates
Administrative and Engineering Fees will be adjusted (not all shown)

No proposed changes to impact fees. See Proposed 2022 Budget at ghid.org

November 2021 GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 22
28



Communication to our Customers
• An additional insert/flyer planned to explain final rate proposal

29



2022 Tentative Budget
Improving quality of life today – creating a better tomorrow.

30



Budget Timeline
Calendar Year 2022

July 29

Step 1 -
Begin 
Development

Management 
Begins Budget 
Development 
Process

September 29

Step 2 –
Preliminary 
Budget

Preliminary Budget 
Prepared

October 12

Step 3 –
Tentative 
Budget

Tentative Budget 
Submitted to 
Trustees for Review

November 16

Step 4 –
Tentative 
Adoption 

Proposed Adoption 
of Tentative Budget

December 14

Step 5 – Formal 
Adoption

Public hearing to 
formally adopt 
final budget 

02

5

Granger Hunter Improvement District / BUDGETARY 

TIMELINE

November 16, 2021

31



REVENUES
(SOURCES OF FUNDS)

TOTAL: $44,879,000

Water Sales, 
$21,276,000 

Sewer Services, 
$13,779,000 

CVW 
Assessment, 
$2,700,000 

Property Taxes, 
$5,876,000 

Impact & 
Engineering 

Fees, $877,000 

Interest & 
Other Misc, 

$371,000 

SRF Bond 
Draws, 

$11,026,282 

Proposed Bond, 
$16,830,000 

Reserves, 
$6,375,704 

26.89%

17.42%

3.41%

7.43%1.11%

0.47%

13.94%

21.27%

8.06%

32



9,101,811

13,565,564

14,703,845

2,425,828
1,178,660

1,777,278

14,488,500

21,869,500

Payroll & 
Benefits 11.51%

Operations & 
Maintenance* 

17.15%

CVW Operations 
& Maint 18.59%

General & 
Administrative

3.07%

Vehicles & 
Equipment

1.49%

Debt Service
2.25%

Carryover 
Infrastructure** 

18.31%

New 
Infrastructure** 

27.64%

EXPENDITURES
(USE OF FUNDS)

TOTAL: $42,752,986 + (**36,358,000 Infrastructure)

**SRF Bonding 2022: $11,026,282
2021 Rollover: $14,488,500
Additional Bonding 2022: $10,843,218

$36,358,000

*Includes Jordan Valley Water purchases at $10.8M

33



REVENUES – SOURCES OF FUNDS

Estimated decline of 
$125k due to lower 
market interest rates

Revenue Escalations

INTEREST 
INCOME

IMPACT 
FEES

Estimated Increase of 
$125k for both water and 
sewer

PROPERTY 
TAX

Increase of $1.6M due 
to proposed rate 
increase

WATER 
RATES

Increase of $1.4M due 
to proposed rate 
adjustments

SEWER 
RATES

Increase of $2.1M due 
to proposed rate 
increase

34



EXPENDITURES – SOURCES OF EXPENSES

Expenditure Escalations

EQUIPMENT 
PURCHASES

CVWRF 
DEBT 

SERVICE

CVW debt service obligations will 
increase by $3.4 million (102%)  
due to rebuild of the treatment 
plant to meet new state and 
federal water quality 
requirements MAINTENANCE 

AND TOOLS

PAYROLL 
WAGES AND 

BENEFITS

Increase of $553k primarily due 
to the addition and replacement 
of equipment including two crane 
trucks, replacing a backhoe and 
purchasing several pieces of new 
equipment that will replace 
equipment the District will no 
longer be leasing

Increase of $240k (3%) due to a 
5% merit escalation and 
associated retirement benefits 
and an 8% increase in health and 
dental insurance premiums, 
offset by a reduction to post-
retirement Utah Retirement 
Systems pension buyouts in 2022 
as well as reduced staffing levels 
in comparison to 2021

Increase of $479k (36%) to 
increase the frequency of the 
District’s small and large meter 
infrastructure replacement and 
because of inflationary increases 
to general maintenance items 
including inventory parts, asphalt, 
cement, fill dirt and permits

35



EXPENDITURES – SOURCES OF EXPENSES

Expenditure Escalations

Decrease of $87k (4%) driven by 
not needing to conduct a Board of 
Trustee election in 2022 and the 
completion of the Master Plan and 
Rate Study done in 2021.

WATER 
PURCHASES

ADMIN

Costs are expected to increase by 
$107k (1%) due to anticipated 
higher JVWCD wholesale water 
rates in the latter half of 2022.

Capital expenditures are expected to 
increase $15.1 million (71%). This will be 
funded through the proposed new 2022 
bond issuance, the 2019 water bond, 
impact fee reserves and net revenues from 
2020 and 2021. CAPITAL 

PROJECTS

36



BUDGETARY APPROVAL PROCESS

Next Steps … 

• Consider Adoption of 
Tentative Budget

• Set Public Hearing for 
Budget, Rate Increases 
and Property Tax 
Increases

November 16, 2021, at 3:00 PM

December 14, 2021, at 6:00 PM

37



 

Page | 1  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                

 
2022 Tentative Budget 

 
 

 

 
  

38



 

Page | 2  
 

Table of Contents 
 

Background ................................................................................................................................... 3 

Budget Process ............................................................................................................................ 3 

Budget Summary .......................................................................................................................... 5 

Operating Revenue ...................................................................................................................... 6 

Water and Wastewater Rates ................................................................................................ 6 

Property Tax Revenues .......................................................................................................... 6 

Operating Expenses .................................................................................................................... 6 

Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility (CVW) .............................................................. 6 

Maintenance and Tools ........................................................................................................... 7 

Payroll Wages & Benefits ....................................................................................................... 7 

Water Purchases ...................................................................................................................... 7 

Utilities ........................................................................................................................................ 7 

Administrative ........................................................................................................................... 8 

Contingencies ........................................................................................................................... 8 

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses ................................................................................. 8 

Non-Operating Revenues ....................................................................................................... 8 

Equipment Purchases ............................................................................................................. 8 

Debt Service .............................................................................................................................. 8 

Capital Expenditures .................................................................................................................... 9 

District Reserve Funds ................................................................................................................ 9 

Operating Reserves ................................................................................................................. 9 

Repair and Replacement Reserve ........................................................................................ 9 

Impact Fee Reserve................................................................................................................. 9 

Insurance Reserve Funds ..................................................................................................... 10 

Post-Employment Benefit Reserve ..................................................................................... 10 

Summary ..................................................................................................................................... 10 

 

  

39



 

Page | 3  
 

Background 
 
The District was organized January 13, 1950, and provides water and wastewater 
services to approximately 133,000 people in a 24.5 square mile area in the central portion 
of Salt Lake County. The boundaries of the District roughly parallel those of West Valley 
City. The principal offices are located at 2888 South 3600 West, in West Valley City, Utah. 
It employs about 78 people and operates and maintains water lines, water storage 
reservoirs, several deep water wells, wastewater collection lines and a number of 
wastewater pump stations.  
 
The Tentative 2022 budget for Granger-Hunter Improvement District (the District) was 
prepared in accordance with the District’s vision: Improving quality of life today – creating 
a better tomorrow, the District’s mission: Stewards of water that is delivered clean and 
safe for daily use and collected responsibly to protect public health and our environment 
and supports the District’s strategic plan.  This budget narrative will provide an overview 
of the framework the District believes will help it to meet its objective. 

Budget Process 
 
The annual budget is created by the District’s management as required by Utah law. 
Directors have a responsibility to submit their department budgets for consideration and 
reviewed by management. The needs of a department are weighed against the needs of 
all departments, and priorities are established. Budgets for personnel and capital projects 
are also prepared and input is received from management and directors. The budget is 
then organized and presented to the Board for comment, input, additional prioritization of 
needs and approval. Once the budget is adopted, it becomes the framework for applying 
District resources in the best manner to meet the needs of the customer. 
 
Prior to adoption of the budget, the following steps have or need to occur: 
 

• District management met with all Directors on September 15th, 2021, to receive 
inputs on each of the District’s departments and capital budgets.  

• The District’s Budget Committee, consisting of one board member, the General 
Manager, the two Assistant General Managers and the Controller, met on 
September 20th, 2021, to discuss the preliminary budget numbers to put into the 
tentative budget.  

• The tentative budget is prepared and given to the Board on or before the first 
scheduled meeting in November (handed out during 4th week in October). The 
tentative budget (amended for any Board input) should then be adopted at the 
November 16th (3:00 p.m.) Board meeting. 

• When the tentative budget is adopted, the Board will also establish the time and 
place of the public hearing to consider adoption of the final budget, rate increases 
and property tax increases. The time and place can be the same as the regularly 
scheduled meeting in December, which is currently scheduled to be held on 
December 14th at 5:00 p.m. The public hearing for the budget is planned to begin 
at 6:00 p.m.  

40



 

Page | 4  
 

• If fee, rate or tax increases are considered (as is the case for the coming year), the 
District must publish notice of the public hearing at 10 public locations throughout 
the district and post notice on the public notice website. In addition for tax 
increases, a quarter page ad must be placed in the paper two times in the two 
weeks prior to the meeting and each property parcel was notified of the increase 
via a post card mailed to all addresses on file with the county prior to October 26th.  

• The Board, by resolution, may adopt the budget, rate and tax increase following 
the public hearing. The budget must be adopted before January 1, 2022. 

  

41



 

Page | 5  
 

 

Budget Summary 
 

TENTATIVE

Actual Actual Projected 2021 Budget Budget %

2019 2020 as of  09/30/2021 2021 2022 Change

OPERATING REVENUES

Operating Revenues 33,650,922$    36,008,100$    33,384,120$    34,439,300$    37,943,000$    10.2%

Property Tax Revenues 4,207,289        4,189,539        4,140,233        4,255,000        5,876,000        38.1%

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 37,858,211      40,197,639      37,524,353      38,694,300      43,819,000      13.2%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Payroll Wages & Benefits 8,143,883        8,426,576        7,784,458        8,861,853        9,101,811        2.7%

Maintenance and Tools 1,262,359        845,779           1,302,995        1,338,380        1,817,097        35.8%

Water Purchases 10,520,489      11,246,892      10,214,355      10,717,260      10,824,567      1.0%

Utilities 912,015           1,012,151        932,557           1,000,500        1,011,188        1.1%

CVWRF 5,580,906        4,880,610        10,821,298      11,114,942      14,703,845      32.3%

Administrative 2,201,076        1,858,812        2,172,608        2,245,457        2,158,540        -3.9%

Contingencies -                       -                       -                       180,000           180,000           0.0%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 28,620,728      28,270,820      33,228,271      35,458,392      39,797,048      12.2%

NET OPERATING REVENUES 9,237,483        11,926,819      4,296,082        3,235,908        4,021,952        24.3%

INDIRECT OPERATING EXPENSES (8,022,310)       (7,979,887)       (8,175,000)       (8,200,000)       (8,420,000)       2.7%

NON-OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES

Non-Operating Revenues 1,776,352 1,707,688 1,291,284 1,060,000 1,060,000 0.0%

Equipment Purchases (409,105)          (414,785)          (625,810)          (625,810)          (1,178,660)       88.3%

Debt Service (398,371)          (857,362)          (1,050,388)       (1,050,388)       (1,777,278)       69.2%

NON-OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES 968,876           435,541           (384,914)          (616,198)          (1,895,938)       207.7%

NET REVENUES INCL DEPRECIATION 2,184,049$      4,382,473$      (4,263,832)$     (5,580,290)$     (6,293,986)$     12.8%

Add Back Depreciation 7,809,067        7,821,047        8,000,000        8,000,000        8,250,000        3.1%

Add 2021 Budget Carryover -                       -                       (450,000)          -                       450,000           N/A

NET REVENUES 9,993,116$      12,203,520$    3,286,168$      2,419,710$      2,406,014$      -0.6%

TENTATIVE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2021 Budget 2022 Budget

Water - Horizontal 7,075,000$      8,816,252$      3,310,000$      5,412,500$      63.5%

Water - Vertical 475,000           3,490,900        10,469,500      20,090,000      91.9%

Wastewater - Horizontal 750,000           1,250,000        1,902,000        3,605,000        89.5%

Wastewater - Vertical 248,000           905,000           3,726,000        4,726,000        26.8%

General Facilities 828,600           1,275,000        1,897,000        2,524,500        33.1%

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9,376,600$      15,737,152$    21,304,500$    36,358,000$    70.7%  

  

42



 

Page | 6  
 

Operating Revenue 
 

Water and Wastewater Rates 
In 2018, the District implemented a tiered or “inclining block” water rate structure to 
encourage conservation efforts in accordance with a new law passed by the State of Utah. 
In 2022 the District is modifying its rate structure to increase water rates by approximately 
7% and wastewater rates by approximately 18%, for a total revenue increase of $3.5 
million when compared to the prior year’s budget. These increases are driven by higher 
operating expenses resulting from the increase in the Central Valley Water Reclamation 
Facility (CVW) debt service that is financing its facility rehabilitation, to help sustain and 
replace the District’s aging infrastructure and increasing the scope of the meter 
replacement program in the District. 
 
The 2022 tiered water rate structure will be as follows: 
Availability fee remains the same at $13.00 per EDU.  
Water tier rates for single family (residential) customers will be based on the following 
table: 
         0 –   7,000 gallons = $1.77 per 1,000 gallons 
  7,001 – 15,000 gallons = $1.90 per 1,000 gallons 
15,001 – 45,000 gallons = $2.20 per 1,000 gallons 
       All > 45,000 gallons = $3.00 per 1,000 gallons  
For non-residential customers, the District will apply a fixed rate of $2.10 per 1,000 
gallons. 
 
The 2022 wastewater rate structure will be as follows: 
Base wastewater rate will drop from $21.50 to $15.50 per EDU. The CVW $5.00 per EDU 
will remain unchanged. Additional charges will be based on an indoor usage charge of 
$1.50 per 1,000 gallons. Indoor use is defined as water consumption billed in months 
December through April. Those customers who have grease interceptors will remain on 
specific rate tables that are based on the contaminants put into the District’s wastewater 
system. 
 

Property Tax Revenues 
During the September 2021 board meeting, the Board of Trustees formally adopted a 
property tax policy. In the meeting, it was decided that the District would set a property 
tax revenue amount that would equal 17% of total operating costs excluding the CVW 
debt service payments. 17% of operating costs represents “public good” services the 
District provides, including but not limited to, fire protection, public health, ground water 
management and current and future debt service. The new rate is estimated to increase 
by about 45% from 0.000414 to 0.000600 and estimated to collect $5.5 million in total 
revenue (does not include estimated motor vehicle and delinquent taxes).  

Operating Expenses 
 

Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility (CVW) 
The CVW treatment plant treats the wastewater of the District. The District is one of seven 
member entities that own the CVW treatment plant. Member entities pay their share of 

43



 

Page | 7  
 

CVW operating and capital expenditures on a monthly basis. Operating expenses are 
allocated based on each entity’s 12-month average of volume and strength of the 
wastewater as of the prior month. Capital costs are allocated based on each entity’s 12-
month average of volume and strength of wastewater as of August of the preceding year. 
The District’s share of CVW operating costs as of August 2021 was approximately 23%. 
For 2022, the District anticipates that CVW operating costs will increase by about $202k 
(3%) from prior year’s budget. 
 
In late 2017, CVW began a complete rebuild of the treatment plant to meet new state and 
federal water quality requirements by January 1, 2025. CVW is funding the rebuild with a 
combination of cash contributions from member entities and issuance of bonds. Member 
entities are required to pay a portion of their capital cost allocation monthly as pay-as-
you-go (pay-go) capital contributions. The District is obligated to pay CVW the related 
debt service over the life of the bonds. For 2022 the District is planning that CVW debt 
service obligations will increase by $3.4 million (102%) when compared to prior year’s 
budget.  
 

Maintenance and Tools 
With the District’s aging infrastructure, its necessary to allocate resources towards 
maintaining its water lines, wastewater lines and small and large meter infrastructure. 
Maintenance projects include, but are not limited to, repairing leaks and line breaks, 
cleaning wastewater lines and purchasing inventory to repair the system. This year the 
District is raising its maintenance budget by $479k (36%) to increase the frequency of its 
small and large meter infrastructure replacement and because of inflationary increases 
to general maintenance items including inventory parts, asphalt, cement, fill dirt and 
permits. 
 

Payroll Wages & Benefits 
The District is anticipating a modest increase in payroll wages and benefits in 2022. 
Payroll wages and benefits are expected to increase $240k (3%) due to a 5% merit 
increase and associated retirement benefits and an 8% increase in health and dental 
insurance premiums, offset by a reduction to post-retirement Utah Retirement Systems 
pension buyouts in 2022.  
 

Water Purchases 
Currently the District has a contract with Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District (JVW) 
to purchase 18,500 acre feet of water on an annual basis. This is a take-or-pay contract, 
meaning that even if the District does not utilize 100% of its contract, JVW requires the 
District to pay the difference between the water actually delivered and its 18,500 acre feet 
contract. Typically, if this occurs, JVW allows the District to take that water in the next 
calendar year at no cost, since this was purchased the previous year. In 2022 water 
purchases are expected to increase by $107k (1%) due to higher expected charged rates 
in the latter half of 2022. 
 

Utilities 
There are no substantial increases expected for utility expenses to the District in 2022. 
 

44



 

Page | 8  
 

Administrative 
Administrative expenses are expected to decline in 2022 by $87k (4%). The reduction in 
2022 is driven by not needing to conduct a Board of Trustee election in 2022 and the 
completion of the Master Plan and Rate Study done in 2021. This year the District has 
broken out payments to other government agencies as recommended from the Utah State 
Auditor’s office. The District has interlocal agreements with Magna Water District and 
Taylorsville-Bennion Improvement District that allows those districts to provide 
wastewater collection services to the District. Historically, the District would net those 
expenses against the revenues in which those expenses were associated. If the 
payments to other government agencies were excluded from the 2022 Administrative 
budget, the decrease to administrative expenses would have been $266k (11%). 
 

Contingencies 
The contingency budget for 2022 is set at $180k. These funds are set aside for the District 
to use in the event of an emergency that is not budgeted for in other categories. To utilize 
these funds, the District requires special permission from the Board of Trustees in an 
open meeting prior to utilizing this resource. Historically the District has not needed to 
utilize these funds because there were other budget line items that were under budget 
that that could be utilized to cover overages in other budget line items. Any contingency 
budget funds not utilized in a given year is available for the District to use for its Capital 
Expenditures the following year. 

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses 
 

Non-Operating Revenues 
Although the net impact to non-operating revenue is flat for the 2022 budget, there are 
large swings between subcategories. The District is expecting that revenues generated 
from impact fees will increase by $125k (19%) in 2022. Impact fees are paid by 
developers that connect new developments to the District’s water and wastewater 
system. The increase to impact fees collected are expected to be offset by lower interest 
income $125k (50%) caused by federal government stimulus keeping interest rates near 
zero percent. 
 

Equipment Purchases 
Equipment purchases show an increase of $553k (88.3%). There is a Vactor truck that 
the District planned to purchase in 2021 but will not receive it until 2022 because of supply 
chain issues with heavy duty vehicles. This Vactor truck was approved in the 2021 budget, 
and if it is removed from the totals, the increase in this category is $103k (16.4%), 
primarily due to the addition of two crane trucks, replacing a backhoe and purchasing 
several pieces of new equipment that will replace the equipment the District will no longer 
be leasing.  
 

Debt Service 
The District has two outstanding bonds, the 2019 water bond and the 2021 wastewater 
bond. The District is also planning on issuing a new bond early to mid-2022. The new 
bond issuance in 2022 will help the District minimize rate increases to customers during 
2022, rather than asking them to finance the District’s needed capital expenditures 

45



 

Page | 9  
 

through increases to water and wastewater rates. It is assumed that the District will need 
to issue $17 million at an assumed interest rate of 2.5% to be able to finance its needed 
capital expenditures in 2022. The District’s first principal payment on the proposed new 
bond is assumed to be made in 2023. Interest, principal payments and debt issuance 
costs are expected to increase $727k (69%) as the District continues to draw additional 
funds on the $20 million SRF 2019 water bond at a 1.25% interest rate, escalating 
principal payments on the two existing bonds and the interest expense that will be paid 
on the proposed new 2022 bond issuance. 

Capital Expenditures 
 
As mentioned earlier, the District is approaching 70+ year old. The District’s water and 
wastewater infrastructure is showing its age, and will need to start replacing those assets 
in the near future. In 2022, there are several water and wastewater pipeline replacement 
programs scheduled along with the purchase of a 5 million gallon water tank from JVW 
that will meet the State of Utah’s requirement for the District to have adequate water 
storage. In an effort to improve water quality, the District is building a water treatment 
plant that will remove the iron and manganese out of the water prior to distribution to 
consumers. The District will also begin to replace its Pioneer wastewater lift station. In 
total, capital expenditures are expected to increase $15.1 million (71%). This will be 
funded through the proposed new 2022 bond issuance mentioned above, the 2019 water 
bond, impact fee reserves and net revenues from 2020 and 2021.  

District Reserve Funds 
 

Operating Reserves 
The operating reserve target is three to six months of operating expense budget for the 
coming year. The minimum balance in the operating account should provide a “rainy day” 
fund for budget shortfalls or cost overruns. The desired balance, per the 2022 budget, is 
between $9.9 million and $19.8 million. The current operating account balance is quite 
strong even with a significant demand of summer water purchases and water production 
expenses, as well as capital outlays for construction. At 9/30/2021 the balance is 
approximately $19.2 million. 
 

Repair and Replacement Reserve 
Every year the budget includes funds that are earmarked for repair and replacement. 
However, in the event of a catastrophic water line break, the yearly budget will not be 
sufficient to fund the emergency repair. The district has set aside monies in the Repair 
and Replacement Reserve account to fund such emergencies. The district has a goal to 
fund $5.0 million in the account. The balance in this account as of 9/30/2021 was $4.6 
million (86.8%). Additional funding is proposed as funds are available from operations. 
However, the anticipated focus on infrastructure projects over the next few years could 
continue to present a challenge to meeting the District’s goal. 
 

Impact Fee Reserve 
The required amount fluctuates as construction projects are assessed for the cost of their 
added demand on the system capacity and as the District collected fees to complete 

46



 

Page | 10  
 

projects to satisfy that added demand. The reserve is equal to the unspent amount the 
District has collected from construction projects, and the balance as of 9/30/2021 is 
$3.9 million. 
 

Insurance Reserve Funds 
No funding level has been established for this reserve account. Each year the District 
budgets approximately $100,000 to pay deductibles and claims not covered by insurance. 
Any amount not used during the year, is transferred to the reserve fund to provide for 
emergencies and extreme claims that may arise. The balance in this reserve account at 
9/30/2021 was $1.2 million. 
 

Post-Employment Benefit Reserve 
In 2008 the District established this reserve fund to help offset the cost of benefits paid 
for retired employees, including health insurance and state retirement buyout. The 
balance in this fund was $1.4 million as of 9/30/2021. The liability currently on the books 
is $0.8 million. Accounting rules do not require full funding of the liability. However, the 
District has attempted to fund the liability as fully as possible in order to decrease the 
negative impacts of falling behind. It is proposed to continue to over-fund the account.  

Summary 
 
As always, there are many variables that may cause actual results to differ from budgeted 
expectations. The District believes the 2022 proposed budget is realistic considering 
those variables and the above-noted conditions. 
 
The District continues to have a fiscally sound budget, enabling it to meet ongoing 
obligations and provide for capital projects. However, as noted there are significant capital 
items on the horizon, at both the District and the CVW facility. These will require that the 
District be meticulous and cautious in its planning in order to be proactive rather than 
reactive. The District continues to be in strong financial health, with very good 
infrastructure and excellent maintenance efforts. The District exercises care in its 
stewardship over District resources and customer trust, and searches for ways to control 
budgets while meeting customer needs. 
 
For specific details regarding the 2022 Budget, the District invites the reader of this 
document to go online to ghid.org/Budget Reports and download the complete version of 
the budget.  
 
If you have questions about any part of the proposed budget, please contact Jason or 
Austin. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Jason Helm, PE      Austin Ballard, CPA 
General Manager      Controller 
 
 

47



 

 
 

Public 
Comments 

48



Board Meeting Public Comment Form 

Name: Wayne Xia 

Address: 6535 Canyon Crest Drive, Salt Lake City, UT 84121 

Email or Phone: 8016335029 

Representing: 1807 & 1773 Lake Park Drive, West Valley City, UT 
84119 

Comment or 
Question: 

My 4plex properties are each billed 4 individual base 
rate yet with only one water meter. Why not providing 4 
water meters for each building ? 

Reply / Manage 

    

 

 

 
Board Meeting Public Comment Form 

Name: C Edward Rhoads 

Address: 6468 Cottontail Drive  

Email or Phone: 8014557561 

Representing: 
 

Comment or Question: Why what’s wrong with the way they are? 

Reply / Manage 

    

 

  

 

 

49

https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=ghid.org&u=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5naGlkLm9yZy91c2Vycy9zaWduX2lu&i=NWQ2NWFiMjQzYzI3YTkxMTI2ZTliYmY3&t=TFJLUVZDVzZPdVN5QjJCbWxxeGVReWxIRm1QckhKN3lLVVUydnlUZmZVdz0=&h=b20d33fa9a124ea68a90706f6de49043
https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=ghid.org&u=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5naGlkLm9yZy91c2Vycy9zaWduX2lu&i=NWQ2NWFiMjQzYzI3YTkxMTI2ZTliYmY3&t=TFJLUVZDVzZPdVN5QjJCbWxxeGVReWxIRm1QckhKN3lLVVUydnlUZmZVdz0=&h=d076020b2fc9417292c86dd3ccf5feec


Board Meeting Public Comment Form 

Name: Sokheng Phay 

Address: 6749 Meadow Farm Drive 

Email or Phone: Sokhengphay@gmail.com 

Representing: N/A 

Comment or Question: N/A 

Reply / Manage 

    

 

 

 
Board Meeting Public Comment Form 

Name: Stephanie Mulford 

Address: 6572 west 2920 south 

Email or 
Phone: 

Mulford0@gmail.com 

Representing: 
 

Comment or 
Question: 

Water is such a sacred resource in the west that we 
should be paying much more for it. Right now the amount 
we pay for this precious resource is not proportional to its 
value. We need to pay an amount that is equal to its 
worth so that people are less likely to waste it. Utah had 
some of the lowest rates for water in the west. It’s time 
we pay more for the privilege of using it.  

Reply / Manage 

    

 

 

50

https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=ghid.org&u=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5naGlkLm9yZy91c2Vycy9zaWduX2lu&i=NWQ2NWFiMjQzYzI3YTkxMTI2ZTliYmY3&t=TFJLUVZDVzZPdVN5QjJCbWxxeGVReWxIRm1QckhKN3lLVVUydnlUZmZVdz0=&h=8c21ab19cce842d39634ff744b56362b
mailto:Mulford0@gmail.com
https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=ghid.org&u=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5naGlkLm9yZy91c2Vycy9zaWduX2lu&i=NWQ2NWFiMjQzYzI3YTkxMTI2ZTliYmY3&t=TFJLUVZDVzZPdVN5QjJCbWxxeGVReWxIRm1QckhKN3lLVVUydnlUZmZVdz0=&h=9deff170917e452e8ce9a83e270c6e35


Contact Us Form 

Name: Helen Jones 

Email: helenjones713@gmail.com 

Phone: 8012503513 

Address: 6485 W King Valley Rd 

Subject: tax rate increase hearing 11/16/2021 

Message: 

I tried 3 times to attach my comment but the technology 
wouldn't accept the file. I will be attending the Nov. 16, 2021 
meeting at 3 p.m. to give my response to the tax increase 
proposed by Granger-Hunter Improvement District. I can 
support my "you don't need the increase" position. 

Attachment: 
 

 
Reply / Manage 

    

 

 

Board Meeting Public Comment Form 

Name: Adrian ruiz  

Address: 2966 w 3875 s 

Email or Phone: musicaparatualma@live.com  

Representing: adrian 

Comment or Question: meeting 

Reply / Manage 

    

 

  

51

mailto:helenjones713@gmail.com
https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=ghid.org&u=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5naGlkLm9yZy91c2Vycy9zaWduX2lu&i=NWM3ZDM0MGVlZDAzZWUxM2NiMTIxZWRi&t=ZUYzSHFvTFlWTStMQW81L1JkMlV2UWhWamx3RFZ0T1htOVRXT3kxc29pcz0=&h=26f72e6c760249bf943e31e166d33c32
mailto:musicaparatualma@live.com
https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=ghid.org&u=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5naGlkLm9yZy91c2Vycy9zaWduX2lu&i=NWQ2NWFiMjQzYzI3YTkxMTI2ZTliYmY3&t=TFJLUVZDVzZPdVN5QjJCbWxxeGVReWxIRm1QckhKN3lLVVUydnlUZmZVdz0=&h=b196b59d859d463e813780349797c462


Board Meeting Public Comment Form 

Name: Amanda Rodriguez 

Address: 4207 S John Robert Circle 

Email or 
Phone: 

amandible@yahoo.com 

Representing: A concerned citizen of West Valley 

Comment or 
Question: 

I'm sure improvements are necessary but my concern is 
an increase to our already extremely high property tax. 
We make less than $60,000 a year and our property tax 
just increased to $4,400. $367/mo is already extremely 
difficult to budget and we've considered leaving west 
valley because of it. If increases are necessary than the 
city of West Valley needs to find a way to decrease 
taxes somewhere else.  

Reply / Manage 

    

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52

mailto:amandible@yahoo.com
https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=ghid.org&u=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5naGlkLm9yZy91c2Vycy9zaWduX2lu&i=NWQ2NWFiMjQzYzI3YTkxMTI2ZTliYmY3&t=TFJLUVZDVzZPdVN5QjJCbWxxeGVReWxIRm1QckhKN3lLVVUydnlUZmZVdz0=&h=2744f4446cc841b9a55b035b5d22062e


  

Board Meeting Public Comment Form 

Name: Anastasia Mazzaferro 

Address: 3760 S 3200 W, West Valley City, UT 84119 

Email or 
Phone: 

mazzaferro.a.m@gmail.com 

Representing: Self 

Comment or 
Question: 

Infrastructure upgrades are absolutely essential and 
important. However, the proposed property tax increase 
in the initial notice in order to pay for these upgrades 
over the next several years was shockingly steep. This 
may make it so people can no longer afford to live in 
their homes - a real threat when rental prices in the SLC 
area have increased nearly 30% over the last 12 months 
and were higher than most mortgages before this 
increase. Is potential revenue from the federal 
infrastructure bill that was just passed being looked at to 
reduce impact to residents? If it is being looked at, how 
much of a reduction to residents would you expect? 
There is a lump sum in the budget for the expected costs 
of continued upgrades, but exactly how is that being 
spent? Who has the contract, how long is the contract 
for, is there even a contract? And with that, would there 
be opportunity to send it out to bid? If you are doing the 
repairs yourself, exactly how much are you expecting to 
spend on labour, materials, and could these be gotten 
from more cost effective sources? 

Reply / Manage 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

53

mailto:mazzaferro.a.m@gmail.com
https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=ghid.org&u=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5naGlkLm9yZy91c2Vycy9zaWduX2lu&i=NWQ2NWFiMjQzYzI3YTkxMTI2ZTliYmY3&t=TFJLUVZDVzZPdVN5QjJCbWxxeGVReWxIRm1QckhKN3lLVVUydnlUZmZVdz0=&h=08dd4283953a4dfbb8329d3672178139


Contact Us Form 

Name: Paul Curtis 

Email: pvcurtis@yahoo.com 

Phone: 801-940-8882 

Address: 6088 W Autumn Vistas Dr 

Subject: Rate increase 

Message: 

I am not interested in spending more money to remove iron 
and Magnesium in the water. I am interested in simplified 
audit with current income and required expenditures to 
maintain status quo and what are the actual costs of 
required improvements. Thank you--Paul  

Attachment: 
 

Reply / Manage 

    

 

  

 

 

54

mailto:pvcurtis@yahoo.com
https://us-east-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=ghid.org&u=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5naGlkLm9yZy91c2Vycy9zaWduX2lu&i=NWM3ZDM0MGVlZDAzZWUxM2NiMTIxZWRi&t=ZUYzSHFvTFlWTStMQW81L1JkMlV2UWhWamx3RFZ0T1htOVRXT3kxc29pcz0=&h=1e7a04f4895c4f88af4dcbcda7285b05


 

 
 

Memorandum of 
Understanding Between 

Utah Department of 
Workforce Services and 

Granger-Hunter 
Improvement District 

55



The Home Energy Assistance Target (HEAT) program is 
designed to help low-income households with energy 

and water costs. For eligibility requirements, visit:

There is help available for your home energy 
and water bills

jobs.utah.gov/heat

You may qualify for a heating benefit 
(Oct.-March), cooling benefit (April-

Sept.) and water assistance when you 
apply for the HEAT program. 

 

 

HEAT Program

COOLING
HEATING

WATER

For a 
limited 

time

56



Necessary Documentation
• Government issued picture ID.
• Social Security cards for you and EVERYONE 

living in your household.
• A copy of your power, heat and water bills.
• Proof of ALL income received by all household 

members in the month prior to the month of 
your application.

• Proof of any eligible medical expenses, child 
support and alimony you paid in the month 
prior to the month of your application.

• Proof of disability, if applicable.
• Proof of birthdate for a child age six (6) or 

under.
• Additional documentation, if required.

Equal Opportunity Employer/Program • 12-02-0921
Auxiliary aids (accommodations) and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities by calling 801-526-
9240. Individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing, or have speech impairments may call Relay Utah by dialing 711.  Spanish 

Relay Utah:  1-888-346-3162. If you believe you have been treated unfairly by the HEAT program call 801-526-9920.

HEAT Program

Beaver  435-438-3584
Box Elder 435-723-1116
Cache 435-713-1444
Carbon 435-613-0100
Daggett 435-781-2021
Davis 801-394-9774
Duchesne 435-722-5218
Emery 435-381-5783
Garfield 435-438-3584
Grand 435-259-6362
Iron 435-586-0858
Juab 888-255-9692
Kane 435-644-3803
Millard, East 435-743-4060
Millard, West 888-255-9692
Morgan 801-394-9774

Piute 435-893-0744 
Rich 877-772-7242
Salt Lake 801-359-2444
 1-844-214-3090
San Juan 435-613-0100
Sanpete 435-835-2831
Sevier 435-893-0745
Summit 801-229-3855x5
Tooele 801-359-2444
 1-844-214-3090
Uintah 435-781-2021
Utah 801-229-3855
Wasatch 801-229-3855
Washington 435-652-9643
Wayne 435-893-0744
Weber 801-394-9774

You can apply for assistance by calling 
your local HEAT Office:

You may also call 211 about HEAT and 
other programs that may be available.

57



Agreement #________________

Page 1 of 4 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE 

UTAH DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE SERVICES 
AND  

__________ 

This Agreement is entered into between Utah Department of Workforce Services, hereinafter 
referred to as the Department or DWS, and the organization listed below, hereinafter 
referred to as Contractor, collectively referenced as PARTIES: 

________________________________________ 
Organization 

________________________________________ 
Address 

_______________ _________ ____________ 
City   State  Zip 

Now therefore, the PARTIES agree as follows: 

I. Purpose
DWS and the Contractor shall enter into an Agreement for the purpose of DWS
providing water assistance benefits directly to the Water Provider for eligible low-
income households.

II. Period of Performance
This Agreement is effective October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2023 unless
terminated sooner in accordance with the terms and conditions herein.

III. Termination
DWS may terminate this Agreement without prior notice if deemed necessary
because of a requirement of law or policy, failure of the Contractor to comply with
the terms of this Agreement, established procedures, or legal requirements.  This
agreement may be terminated without cause, in writing, with the mutual consent of
the PARTIES.

IV. Renegotiation or Modification
This Agreement may be amended, modified, or supplemented only by written
amendment to the Agreement, executed by the PARTIES hereto, and attached to the
original signed copy of the Agreement.

V. Attachments
The Contractor agrees to comply with the terms of the following attachment(s).
Attachment A: Non-Disclosure Agreement
Attachment B: Water Type Agreement
Attachment C: Water Assistance Program Policy Manual

Department of Workforce Services, 140 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

Granger-Hunter Improvement District

Granger-Hunter Improvement District

2888 S 3600 W 

West Valley City Utah 84119

58

https://jobs.utah.gov/housing/scso/seal/documents/heatpolicymanual.pdf


 Agreement #________________ 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 

VI. Monitoring 
PARTIES shall permit each other the right of a compliance review to ensure that the 
provisions of the Agreement are upheld and will maintain a process sufficient to allow 
an audit of its compliance. 
 

VII. Imposition of Fees 
The Contractor will not impose any fees upon clients for services provided under this 
Agreement except as authorized by DWS. 

 
VIII. Confidentiality and Disclosure  

Checks will be sent to the water provider in the mail.  The check stub will contain the 
account numbers for the accounts to which the check should be applied. The 
Contractor agrees not to use or disclose information other than as permitted under 
Section I above or required by law. The Contractor acknowledges that § 35A-4-
312(7) imposes privacy and confidentiality requirements on information. Penalties, 
including criminal penalties under § 76-8-1301(4) Utah Code annotated, may be 
imposed for misuse or improper disclosure of such information. 
A. Information obtained under this Agreement shall only be used to support the 

valid administrative needs of the Contractor and shall not be disclosed for any 
purpose other than those specifically authorized by this Agreement. The 
Contractor’s employees and volunteers must sign the “Department of Workforce 
Services Non-disclosure Agreement” (Attachment A).  

B. The Contractor shall have sufficient safeguards in place to ensure the information 
obtained is used only for the purpose disclosed.  

C. At the request of DWS, the Contractor shall identify all personnel, by position, 
authorized to request and receive information. 

 
IX. Equal Opportunity and Non-Discrimination 

The Contractor shall comply with Section 188 of the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act, and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, to the extent they apply to the 
subject matter of this contract. 
 

X. Protection and Use of Client Records   
The use or disclosure by any party, of any information concerning a client for any 
purpose not directly connected with the administration of the PARTIES’ 
responsibilities under the terms of this Agreement is prohibited except on written 
consent of the client, their attorney, or responsible parent or guardian.  

 
XI. Indemnity  

IF THE WATER PROVIDER IS A GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY: Both PARTIES to this 
Agreement are governmental entities as defined in the Utah Governmental Immunity 
Act (Utah Code Ann. 63G-7-101 et. seq.). Nothing in this Contract shall be construed 
as a waiver by either or both PARTIES of any rights, limits, protections or defenses 
provided by the Act.  Nor shall this Contract be construed, with respect to third 
PARTIES, as a waiver of any governmental immunity to which a party to this 
Contract is otherwise entitled.  Subject to and consistent with the Act, each party will 

Department of Workforce Services, 140 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 8411159



 Agreement #________________ 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

be responsible for its own actions or negligence and will defend against any claims or 
lawsuit brought against it.  There are no indemnity obligations between these 
PARTIES.  
IF THE WATER PROVIDER IS A NON-GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY: The Contractor agrees 
to indemnify, save harmless, and release the State of Utah, and all its officers, 
agents, volunteers, and employees from and against any and all loss, damages, 
injury, liability, suits, and proceedings arising out of the performance of this 
Agreement which are caused in whole or in part by the negligence of the Contractor’s 
officers, agents, volunteers, or employees, but not for claims arising from the State's 
sole negligence. 
 

XII. Contract Jurisdiction, Choice of Law and Venue 
The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah. 
The PARTIES will submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Utah for any 
dispute arising out of this Agreement or the breach thereof. Venue shall be in Salt 
Lake City, in the Third Judicial District Court for Salt Lake County. 
 

XIII. Separability Clause 
A declaration by any court, or any other binding legal source, that any provision of 
this Agreement is unenforceable shall not affect the legality and enforceability of any 
other provision of this Agreement, unless the provisions are mutually dependent.  
 

XIV. Additional Requirements 
Provisions incorporated into this Agreement by reference but not attached hereto 
include all other governmental laws, rules, regulations, or actions applicable to 
services provided herein.  
 
 

Contact Information

Department of Workforce Services Water Provider 

Name:  Lori Page Name:  

Position: Water Assistance Vendor Specialist Position:  

Phone:  801-526-9924 Phone:  

Email: loripage@utah.gov Email: 

 
 
  

Department of Workforce Services, 140 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

Michelle Ketchum

801-968-3551

Director of Administrative Services

m.ketchum@ghid.org

60



Agreement #________________

Page 4 of 4 

This MOU and all documents incorporated by reference constitute the entire Agreement 
between the PARTIES and supersede all prior negotiations, representations, or Agreements, 
either written or oral between the PARTIES relating to the subject matter of this MOU. 

Signatures and Acknowledgement 
By signing below, the following officials acknowledge that they understand and agree to all 
of the terms and responsibilities set forth herein and cause this Agreement to be executed. 

APPROVED FOR CONTRACTOR: 

____________________________________________________________________ 
Signature   Date 

_______________________________________________ 
Print Name/Title 

APPROVED FOR DWS: 

____________________________________________________________________ 
Casey Cameron, Executive Director                Date 

Department of Workforce Services, 140 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 8411161



ATTACHMENT __A__ 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

Each Contractor/Grantee employee or volunteer and each Sub-Contractor/Grantee employee 
or volunteer who has access to Customer personal information must sign this Non-Disclosure 
Agreement at the beginning of the grant or upon hire. A signed copy of this Agreement must be 
in each employee’s/volunteer’s file subject to inspection and review by the Department of 
Workforce Services (DWS). 

The Contractor/Grantee and its employees and volunteers will comply with the following 
measures to protect the privacy of the information released under this agreement against 
unauthorized access or disclosure. 

1. The information shall be used only to the extent necessary to assist in the
purposes identified within this Agreement and shall not be re-disclosed for any
purposes not specifically authorized in this contract.

2. The information shall be stored in a place physically secure from access by
unauthorized persons.

3. Information in electronic format shall be stored and processed in such a way that
unauthorized persons cannot retrieve the information by computer, remote
terminal or any other means.

4. Precautions shall be taken to ensure that only authorized personnel are given
access to on-line files.

5. The Contractor/Grantee has provided me instruction regarding the private nature
of the information and I understand I am subject to State and Federal law
penalties for unauthorized disclosure of information.

____________________________________________________ 
Signature                                                                       Date 

____________________________________________________ 
Print Name 

Page 1 of 1 
Rev. 05/2016 ABM 

Department of Workforce Services, 140 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 8411162



 ATTACHMENT B: WATER TYPE AGREEMENT 

I. Water Type(s) provided (please check all that apply):

☐ Drinking Water

☐ Wastewater

☐ Stormwater

☐ Ground-water

PURPOSE OF ATTACHMENT: 

On December 27, 2020, the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 was signed into 
law. This authorizing legislation included funding in emergency spending to assist 
low-income households with water and wastewater bills. On March 11, 2021, 
additional funding was appropriated in the American Rescue Plan Act (ARP) of 2021 
in emergency spending to assist low-income households with water and wastewater 
bills. Eligible households are defined as those meeting the criteria set forth in the 
Water Assistance Policy Manual (incorporated by reference as Attachment D), 
issued by the Utah DWS Department of Workforce Services, Water Assistance 
Program.  This contract incorporates the requirements that must be met by WATER 
PROVIDERS as payments are made directly by DWS to WATER PROVIDERS. 

SCOPE: 

A. DWS will make payments directly to a WATER PROVIDER provided that:

1. WATER PROVIDER charges the household in WATER PROVIDER’S normal
billing process.

2. WATER PROVIDER bills the household no more than the cost of the
water/wastewater minus the cost of the payments received or expected
from DWS.

3. WATER PROVIDER does not discriminate against or treat adversely any
eligible household for any reason in relation to terms and conditions of
service, sale, credit, delivery, or price, including service charges,
reconnection charges and payment plan arrangements due to their
participation in the water assistance program.

Department of Workforce Services, 140 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 8411163



 

4. WATER PROVIDER agrees not to discontinue water service for at least 30 
days after receiving verification of payment from DWS. Examples of valid 
water payment verifications will be available upon request from DWS. 

 

5. WATER PROVIDER agrees to waive any security deposit billed to 
households approved for the Water Program.  This does not apply to 
service initiation fees routinely charged by a WATER PROVIDER to both 
renters and owners alike as a condition of service. 

 
 
6. WATER PROVIDER agrees to reconnect the client within 24 hours upon 

receiving verbal or written commitment of payment from DWS. 
 
 
7. If a WATER PROVIDER is a utility regulated by the Public Service 

Commission of Utah, a WATER PROVIDER will supply Water accordance 
with provisions of Utah residential Utility Service Regulation R746-200, as 
adopted by the Public Service Commission of Utah. 

 
8. A WATER PROVIDER will ensure that payment by DWS is credited toward 

the household’s water and wastewater costs. 
 
9.  If the water assistance benefit was paid in error or if fraud is determined, 

upon request, the WATER PROVIDER agrees to return the Water 
Assistance Benefit to DWS. 

 

B. DWS will include a list of eligible households and amounts paid on behalf of 
households with each warrant paid to a WATER PROVIDER. Those providers 
accessing the portal will use the portal to help determine to which accounts 
the funds from the warrant should be applied 

 

C. CREDIT BALANCES 
 
1. If a household discontinues service with a WATER PROVIDER, the WATER 

PROVIDER must return any water benefit credit remaining on the account 
to DWS with the Return Funds to State Form. 
   

a. If the household opens a new water utility account for a Utah 
address, the WATER PROVIDER may transfer the remaining credit 

Department of Workforce Services, 140 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 8411164



balance directly to the new WATER PROVIDER without notifying 
DWS. 

b. a WATER PROVIDER may not return credit balances directly to the
client.

D. In the event a WATER PROVIDER erroneously returns funds to DWS, DWS
shall remit such funds to the WATER PROVIDER within 30 days after a
determination that such return was in error.

E. RELEASE OF INFORMATION:

1. The WATER PROVIDER named above is a Retail Water Provider who
represents and warrants that it is authorized to receive payment from
DWS on behalf of a customer determined by DWS under the Water
Assistance Guidelines to be an eligible Water Assistance applicant.  A
WATER PROVIDER will, with reference to an eligible Water Assistance
applicant:

a. Upon verbal or written request from DWS, provide at no cost to DWS
the eligible Water Assistance applicant’s billing and usage history for
the previous twelve (12) months.  A WATER PROVIDER will transmit
such billing history via electronic mail or facsimile by requested date
each year.

b. WATER PROVIDER agrees to provide relevant account information
including account balance, utility number, and a copy of recent utility
bills when requested by DWS.

Department of Workforce Services, 140 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 8411165



 

 
Our Team 
• 2021 Strategic Plan Initiatives 

Update 
• 2022 Calendar 

• Jordan Valley Water 
Conservancy District Update 

66



APPENDIX A
Strategic Plan 2024

67



2021 - 2024 Strategic Initiatives Quarterly Objective Performance Report
3rd Quarter - July 1, 2021 through September 30, 2021

Objectives have been completed

Objective is on track to be completed by the original target 

date 

Objective was delayed and is on-track to be completed by 

the revised target date 

Objective is not on track 

Object deleted or delayed by the District Board

STATUS GUIDE

68



No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Identify additional areas to share water quality information, 

including websites and social media, mailers, and bills. 

Apr-21 Complete. Information will be shared on website, social 

media, and bill messaging.

A, B, C, H

2 Prepare S.O.P. on large scale water quality event response.                                         Jun-21 Sep-21 The large scale water quality event response SOP has 

been completed for iron and manganese water quality 

issues.

A, B, C, H

3 Develop targeted flushing program, including priority areas 

and yearly schedule. 

Aug-21 Jan-22 In progress. Continuing to gather data from flushing and 

water quality complaints.

A, B, C, H

4 Develop operations plan to minimize water quality events 

throughout the year.

Dec-21 In progress. Automatic flushing units have been acquired and 

operated at dead end streets. Plan includes flushing 

transmission lines and automatic valves. The feasibility of 

adding goosenecks/candy canes to facilitate the flushing of 

transmission lines will be explored.

A, B, C, H, J

5 Identify remaining sites for iron/manganese removal. Dec-21 In progress. Cost estimates for Wells No. 8, 15 and 16 are 

complete.

A, B, C, H

6 Complete construction of RGWTP (Wells No. 1, 12, & 17) May-23 Project is out to bid. Filter Vessels have been contracted, 

as well as 3300 S. Pipeline Improvements.

A, B, C, H

No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Define internal/external stakeholders and scope of 

Ambassador Training Program.

Mar-21 Draft of project scope and stakeholders is complete. 

Needs to be reviewed with senior leaders for input.

C, D, E, I

2 Meetings held with internal and external stakeholders to 

define engagement points and community needs.

Jun-21 Sep-21 Completed - documented common community 

engagement points and necessary skills/competencies to 

address each level. Will have leadership review soon.

C, D, E, I

3 Select and implement customer satisfaction measures 

based on internal/external feedback (responsiveness rate, 

categorizing complaint calls).

Sep-21 Oct-21 Partnering with customer service team to understand the 

baseline measures we have to date.

C, D, E, I

4 Final draft of protocols and trainings reviewed by District 

Management and Board.

Nov-21 Protocols and proposed trainings should be ready to go 

into development by the end of the year.

C, D, E, I

5 Training plan and development timeline finalized Jan-22 On track. C, D, E, I

6 Development and launch employee satisfaction survey. Jun-22 On track. C, D, E, I

2) Our Community - DISTRICT COMMUNITY AMBASSADORS PROGRAM

1) Our Community - WATER QUALITY PROTOCOLS

69



7 Adjust program based on findings and KPI data. 2023+ On track. C, D, E, I

No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Communicate initiative with staff and create a committee 

(meet quarterly).

Mar-21 21-Apr The committee held its first meetng in May. Members 

consists of staff from the WVC area. They elected a 

president and went over  the charter. Decisions regarding 

schedule, frequency, and topics were discussed.

C, E, I

2 Post placemaking efforts on website and social media. Annually The committee is working on designating ownership of 

messaging and follow-up with IT group for support.

C, E, I

3 Develop ideas and protocol for implementing placemaking. Sep-21 Aug-21 Topics discussed: West Fest, WVC parade, National Night 

Out, facility naming, water bottle give-away, work on 

google reviews of GHID, designate an owner to Facebook, 

customer service follow-up recommendations.

C, E, I

4 Create criteria and topics for posting articles in WVC journal 

regarding water related issues/opportunities.

Semi-Annual Committee will need to work on topics in the upcoming 

meeting.

C, E, I

No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Review compensation philosophy and strategy. Jan-21 Completed review of defined compensation strategy, as 

documented in Employee Handbook. Proposed language 

updates to match strategy alignments - will review with 

end of year updates to Handbook.

D, G

2 Validate District compensation philosophy with market 

study (KPI report).

Mar-21 External market study is complete. Internal comparison 

completed with adjustments based on need and merit.

D, G

3 Define and compile data for total compensation profiles 

(Stay/Exit Interview Comparison).

Jun-21 Aug-21 Finished outline components of the statements - working 

on consolidating data sources.

D, G

4 Educational materials created (expected to include local 

comparison data).

Sep-21 Oct-21 In line with end of year reviews to have this information 

ready - delayed due to movement with Ambassador 

Program.

D, G

5 Leader Training on Statements. (And new performance 

management system)

Oct-21 21-Nov Leaders will be doing performance reviews in new cloud 

software and ease of use/tracking.

D, G

6 Create and deliver total compensation statements for each 

employee.

Dec-21 On track. D, G

4) Our Team - TOTAL COMPENSATION PACKAGE FRAMEWORK

3) Our Community - DISTRICT HISTORICAL PLACEMAKING EFFORTS

70



7 Compile local averages for each position. Jun-22 This will be further defined by decisions we make on our 

compensation structure.

D, G

8 Create candidate statements for potential hires. Sep-22 On track. D, G

No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Determine best locations for water system emergency 

interconnects.

Jul-21 Connection points determined. Scheduling construction 

of one Kearns I.D. interconnect beginning October (2 

exist). Looking for location in Magna.

B, E, G, I, J

2 Develop Interlocal Agreements with TBID and Kearns ID for 

shared utility service.

Dec-21 TBID and Magna agreements are in place. Kearns I.D. will 

be completed in 2022. Update Magna in 2022.

F, I

3 Explore opportunities to participate in advocacy coalitions, 

such as those hosted by AWWA, WEF, APWA, and 

ChamberWest. 

Dec-21 Staff are involved with AWWA and ChamberWest. 

Looking for additional opportunities with APWA and 

UASD. 

B, E, I, J

No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Propose Employee Advisory Board Structure. Feb-21 Leaders met to define structure and scope of the EAB. 

Completed board charter.

B, D

2 Define needed resources and create educational materials. Apr-21 Completed - Flyer and info meetings held to broadcast 

the opportunity.

B, D

3 Launch program and call for volunteers to serve on the 

committee.

Jun-21 Completed -  Committee Members volunteered to 

respresent the divisions.

B, D

4 Appoint EAB and announce to all employees. Jul-21 Completed - introductory meeting held 8/11/21. B, D

5 Define scope, operational standards, formalize meetings. Aug-21 Complete - receiving great engagement from the 

committee and communication to the teams is going well. 

Everyone is excited for the possibilities.

B, D

No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Establish Metering Compliance Plan with specific data 

collection and billing procedures.  Shall include 

development of metrics and reporting safeguards to 

mitigate potential sources of erroneous data.

Apr-21 Metering Compliance Plan - Version 1 has been 

developed that includes an overview of data collection 

and billing procedures. Metrics with a review of tracking 

processes have been developed to mitigate potential 

sources of erroneous data.  

B, F, H, I, J

7) Our Team - WATER LOSS TASK FORCE 

6) Our Team - EMPLOYEE ADVISORY BOARD

5) Our Team - IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT COALITION AND MUTUAL AID

71



2 Develop Meter Maintenance Plan that includes routine 

calibration processes and unit output procedures.

Apr-21 Meter Maintenance Plan has been completed that 

provides manufacturer calibration processes, general 

maintenance requirements, and related supporting staff 

processes and procedures.  

B, F, H, I, J

3 Establish a four-year span of water loss rate metrics and key 

performance indicators with annual targets.

Jun-21 Applicable measures have been developed and finalized.  

This includes KPI's for performance comparison 

supported by GHID specific metrics.

B, F, H, I, J

4 Develop Leakage Mitigation Plan that outlines 

recommendations for leak detection technologies, rupture 

volume estimation processes, and Capital Asset 

Replacement analysis and update (targeted for leakage 

reduction).

Sep-21 Oct-21 A GHID Leakage Mitigation Plan comprehensive outline 

has been developed with specific supporting tasks.   

Based on the outline, a draft document has been 

established with revisions to be finalized by end of 

October.

B, F, H, I, J

5 Establish System Pressure Management Plan including 

analysis, cost assessments, recommendations,  and 

implementation. 

Sep-21 Oct-21 A GHID System Pressure Management Plan outline has 

been developed that details technological reviews, 

operational impacts, and supporting costs assessments 

with key activities for successful  implementation.  Based 

on the outline, a draft document has been established 

with revisions to be finalized by end of October.

B, F, H, I, J

6 Develop Unauthorized Connections Identification Plan. Jul-21 An Unauthorized Connections Identification Plan has 

been developed that includes specific topics for both 

preventing and identifying unauthorized connections.

B, F, H, I, J

7 Create Water Loss Task Force Plan and implementation with 

focus on Company wide collaboration, accuracy, correction, 

continual evaluation of methods for reduction, minimization 

and tracking.

Jul-21 Aug-21 Plan has been developed that details task force structure, 

organization, and specific areas of concern as well as 

tracking and reporting procedures.  This incorporates 

other plans as described in thes initiative as well as 

implementation of industry standard practices including 

established AWWA protocols for development and 

implementation.

B, F, H, I, J

8 Develop District Water Loss Legislation Management Plan. Jul-21 Aug-21 This plan has been finalized that covers key areas for 

effective legislation involvement and collaboration.  The 

plan defines efforts surrounding monitoring surrounding 

state legislation efforts with associated successes. 

B, F, H, I, J

No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Purchase east 5 MG reservoir from JVWCD. Mar-21 21-Nov Jordan Valley Water will consider sale of east 5 MG 

reservoir at November Board Meeting. Legal agreement is 

substantially complete.

B, H, J

8) Our Operations - WATER STORAGE AND TANK FARM INTEGRATION 

72



2 Complete construction of Pump Station/Piping 

Improvements at Tank Farm site at 4800 W. 4500 S.

Dec-22 23-Jul Design is 95% complete and under review. Construction 

will be 18 months, construction now planned until July 

2023

B, H, J

3 Monitor for opportunities to construct additional Zone 4 

pipelines to accommodate additional storage at Tank Farm. 

Dec-21 Continue to monitor UDOT and WVC for plans to 

reconstruct roadways, no current projects are scheduled. 

B, H, J

4 Develop internal goals for minimizing peak day and peak 

hour factors.

Dec-21 Working on obtaining data for 2021 peak day. B, H, J

5 Obtain a parcel for construction of the new 5 MG Zone 1 

Reservoir near 4700 South and 6300 West.

Jun-22 Siting study will be conducted starting in 2022. B, H, J

No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Perform Emergency Response and Safety Plan assessments, 

modifications, and updates.  Include development of target 

metrics / KPI's.

Jul-21 The Emergency Response Plan and the Safety Plan have 

both been updated. 

B, D, G, I

2 Conduct Facility Assessments with Workplace Protocols for 

prevention of the spread of infectious disease.

Jul-21 Completed. B, D, G, I

3 Update Safety and Emergency Plans with focus on training 

and proper inventory supplies.

Jul-21 Completed. B, D, G, I

No. Initiative Description Target Date Revised Date Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Update Master Plans for both Water and Wastewater 

Systems, and annually hereafter.

Jul-21 Nov-21 Bowen, Collins & Associates is currently updating the 

Master Plan for use in the 2021 Rate Study & Impact Fee 

Analysis.

B, E, F, H

2 Create 10-year Financial Plan to determine annual revenue 

requirements, update annually hereafter.

Sep-21 Nov-21 the 10-year Financial Plan will be completed after 

completion of the 2021 Master Plan and Rate Study.

B, E, F, H

3 Develop a 10-year Capital Improvement and Infrastructure 

Maintenance Plan, update annually hereafter.

Sep-21 Nov-21 The 10 -year Capital Improvement Plan will be completed 

after completion of the 2021 Master Plan and Rate Study. 

B, E, F, H

9) Our Team  - SAFETY AND EMERGENCY PLANNING UPDATES

10) Our Operations - TEN-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS AND FINANCIAL PLAN

73



EFFECTIVE UTILITY MANAGEMENT (EUM)*
No. Initiative Description

1 Product Quality A

2 Operational Optimization B

3 Customer Satisfaction C

4 Employee and Leadership Development D

5 Stakeholder Understanding and Support E

6 Financial Viability F

7 Enterprise Resiliency G

8 Infrastructure Strategy and Performance H

9 Community Sustainability I

10 Water Resource Sustainability J

Ten Attributes Key: 

74



2021 - 2024 Strategic Initiatives Quarterly Key Performance Indicators
3rd Quarter - July 1, 2021 through September 30, 2021

Objectives have been completed

Objective is on track to be completed by the original target date 

Objective was delayed and is on-track to be completed by the revised target 

date 

Objective is not on track 

Object deleted or delayed by the District Board

STATUS GUIDE

75



No. Indicator Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                     

Maintain average source iron levels below recommended limit - 0.1 mg/L.

The current average is 0.04 mg/L. Wells turned off for the year. A, B, C, E, H

2 Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                              

Begin to reduce average source manganese levels to below recommended 

limit - 0.03 mg/L by 2024.               

The current average is 0.04 mg/L. Wells turned off for the year. A, B, C, E, H

3 Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                        

Begin to reduce average source ammonia levels to below recommended limit - 

0.2 mg-N/L by 2024.

Will need WTPs constructed to significantly decrease ammonia levels. The 

current average is 0.5 mg/L. Wells turned off for the year.

A, B, C, E, H

4 Key Performance Indicator - 4                                                                                      

Reduce water quality complaints to below 350 per year.

 282 water quality complaints as of September 2021. A, B, C, E, H

5 Key Performance Indicator - 5                                                                                      

Share water quality information three times per year in different areas (social 

media, website, mailers). 

The 2021 Consumer Confidence Report (C.C.R.) is on GHID’s website (link 

included with customer bills) and hard copies are available at the District 

office. The C.C.R. will also be shared on the District’s social media page. Plan 

to include sharing water quality information (backflow, flushing, etc.) as bill 

inserts.

A, B, C, E, H

No. Indicator Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                           

Quantify the complaint rates of customer service vs core utility service 

complaints. Initially using  available data to benchmark then looking at 

progression of data over the course of the program.

To be measured in partnership with our customer service team including 

efforts to understand the baseline measures we have to date.  Updated  

anticipated completion by October 31, 2021.

C, D, E, I

2 Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                      

Quantified employee satisfaction based on survey data regarding 

employment, interaction with the public, policy and procedures, etc.                                                         

Survey complete. C, D, E, I

3 Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                          

Yes/No - Do we identify stakeholders, conduct outreach, and actively consider 

input and ongoing improvements to the program?

This is a future state metric once the program is in place. C, D, E, I

1) Our Community - WATER QUALITY PROTOCOLS

2) Our Community - DISTRICT COMMUNITY AMBASSADORS PROGRAM

76



No. Indicator Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                        

Two to three ideas per year from committee involving GHID in community 

placemaking.

The committee developed multiple ideas for placemaking: West Fest, WVC 

parade, WVC National Night Out, call back to customers after a leak, and 

naming building after former board member. 

C, E, I

2 Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                        

Semi-annual placemaking articles posted on website.                               

The Placemaking Committee will develop ideas and material for articles to 

be placed on the website.

C, E, I

3 Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                   

Semi-annual articles/postings on social media and/or West Valley City journal.

The Placemaking Committee will develop ideas and material for articles 

/postings on social media and/or the West Valley City Journal.

C, E, I

No. Initiative Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                        

Evaluate salary competitiveness relative to market rate on an annual basis.

2021 Evaluation Complete. D, G

2 Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                  

Turnover rate comparison by benchmarked data in industry over time.

Delayed - not started due to other initiatives. Considering alternatives for 

measurement in improvement.

D, G

3 Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                                

Stay and Exit Interview data comparison prior to and annually after rollout of 

framework.

Year 1  Complete. D, G

No. Initiative Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                        

Hold bi-yearly meetings with neighboring 3 Improvement Districts.

Working with Kearns I.D. on interconnects. TBID interlocal agreement is 

complete.

B, D, E, I

2 Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                           

Maintain at least 1 emergency interconnect per water pressure zone (5 total).

Currently have three interconnects, 2 with Kearns and 1 with TBID. Working 

on one additional with Kearns. 

B, D, E, I

3 Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                         

Maintain updated Interlocal Agreements for shared utility service with 3 

neighboring entities, verified or updated annually.

Current with Taylorsville-Bennion I.D. and Magna, Kearns I.D. will be next. B, D, E, I

5) Our Team - IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT COALITION AND MUTUAL AID

4) Our Team - TOTAL COMPENSATION PACKAGE FRAMEWORK

3) Our Community - DISTRICT HISTORICAL PLACEMAKING EFFORTS

77



No. Indicator Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                            

Quantified employee satisfaction based on survey data regarding 

employment, interaction with the public, policy and procedures, etc.                                                         

Survey complete. B, D

No. Indicator Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                                 

Metering data collection and billing process compliance with established plan 

procedures and rate tracking of reporting safeguards.

Plan completed.  Implementation on-track. B, F, H, I, J

2 Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                                          

100% Compliance with Meter Maintenance Plan, including routine calibration 

and unit output verification, routine adaptation and update to Plan, and 

implementation.                                                           

Plan completed.  Implementation on-track. B, F, H, I, J

3 Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                                      

Complete annual analysis and update of target metrics identified in the Four-

Year Target Metric Plan including water loss rate with supporting benchmarks 

and performance indicators.

On-track. B, F, H, I, J

4 Key Performance Indicator - 4                                                                                                                

Perform routine leak detection analysis of entire system on established 

completion interval with update of Mitigation Plan.

Leak detection completed for 100 miles of the District's system for 2021.  

Mitigation Plan is in development that will outline completion interval.  

Anticipated to be annual project with next interval tentative for spring 

2022.

B, F, H, I, J

5 Key Performance Indicator - 5                                                                                                    

Conduct routine system pressure management analysis, review, and 

recommendation development in line with established plan. 

On-track. B, F, H, I, J

6 Key Performance Indicator - 6                                                                                                      

Conduct 100% of annual unauthorized connections assessments as outlined 

and in accordance to the Identification Plan.

Plan completed.  Implementation on-track. B, F, H, I, J

7 Key Performance Indicator - 7                                                                                                 

Conduct and implement 100% of Water Loss Task Force Outline and Plan 

established annual tasks. 

Plan completed.  Implementation on-track. B, F, H, I, J

8 Key Performance Indicator - 8                                                                                                               

Perform Legislation Management activities in line with established plan and 

with focus on emerging issues to enhance legislative and community support 

for water loss based legislation each calendar year.

Plan completed.  Implementation on-track. B, F, H, I, J

8) Our Operations - WATER STORAGE AND TANK FARM INTEGRATION 

6) Our Team - EMPLOYEE ADVISORY BOARD

7) Our Community - WATER LOSS TASK FORCE 

78



No. Initiative Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                   

Ensure peak day factor remains below 3-year average (2.3).

No data yet. B, F, H, G

2 Key Performance Indicator - 2               

Ensure peak hour factor remains below 3-year average (3.4).         

No data yet. B, F, H, G

3 Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                      

Utilize 105% or less of the JVWCD Contract Annually. 

Currently at 82% B, F, H, G

No. Initiative Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                         

Annual review of Recordable Incident rate and target. 

Recordable incident rate is being monitored and assessed.  On-track. B, D, G, I

2 Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                           

Annual review of Preventable Vehicle Accident rate tracking and target.

Preventable vehicle accident rate is being monitored and assessed.  On-

track.

B, D, G, I

3 Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                            

Annual update of Safety and Emergency Plans compliance.

Complete. B, D, G, I

No. Initiative Description Status Comments Effective Utility 

Management*

1 Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                     

Annually update the 10-year Financial Plan.

In progress, 70% complete. F, G, H

2 Key Performance Indicator - 2               

Annually update the 10-year Capital Improvement/Infrastructure 

Management Plan.    

In progress, 70% complete. F, G, H

3 Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                               

Evaluate net revenues required to adequately fund capital improvements and 

future bond issuances.

In progress, 70% complete. F, G, H

4 Key Performance Indicator - 4                                                                                     

Evaluate debt to equity  ratio.

Currently 0.07, will be 0.17 when full $20M SRF loan is drawn. GHID 

currently uses $0.07 of debt financing for every $1.00 in equity financing. 

F, G, H

9) Our Team - SAFETY AND EMERGENCY PLANNING UPDATES

10) Our Operations - 10-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND FINANCIAL PLAN

79



EFFECTIVE UTILITY MANAGEMENT (EUM)*
No. Initiative Description

1 Product Quality A

2 Operational Optimization B

3 Customer Satisfaction C

4 Employee and Leadership Development D

5 Stakeholder Understanding and Support E

6 Financial Viability F

7 Enterprise Resiliency G

8 Infrastructure Strategy and Performance H

9 Community Sustainability I

10 Water Resource Sustainability J

Ten Attributes Key: 

80



1) Our Community - WATER QUALITY PROTOCOLS
Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                   

Maintain average source iron levels below recommended limit - 0.1 mg/L.

Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                         

Reduce average source manganese levels to below recommended limit - 0.015 

mg/L.                                                  

Key Performance Indicator - 4                                                                             

Reduce water quality complaints to below 350 per year.

Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                      

Reduce average source ammonia levels to below recommended limit - 0.02 mg-

N/L.

0.00

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.10

0.12

2021 2022 2023 2024

A
ve

ra
ge

 I
ro

n
 L

ev
el

s 
(m

g/
L)

Average Iron Levels in Wells

Target

Actual

0.00

0.01

0.02

0.03

0.04

0.05

0.06

0.07

2021 2022 2023 2024

A
ve

ra
ge

 M
an

ga
n

es
e 

Le
ve

ls
 (

m
g/

L)

Average Manganese Levels in Wells

Target

Actual

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Average Ammonia Levels in Wells

Target

Actual

0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

250.0

300.0

350.0

400.0

450.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

A
n

n
u

al
 W

at
er

 Q
u

al
it

y 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

Annual Water Quality Complaints

Target

Actual

On 
Track

On 
Track

Above 
Range

On 
Track

81



Key Performance Indicator - 5                                                                                    

Share water quality information three times per year in different areas (social 

media, website, mailers).                                                

2) Our Community - DISTRICT COMMUNITY AMBASSADORS PROGRAM 

Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                        

Quantify the complaint rates of customer service vs core utility service 

complaints. Initially using  available data to benchmark then looking at 

progression of data over the course of the program.

Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                                                       

Quantify employee satisfaction based on survey data regarding employment, 

interaction with the public, policy and procedures, etc.                              

0

1

2

3

2021 2022 2023 2024

# 
o

f 
Ti

m
es

 S
h

ar
ed

 A
n

n
u

al
ly

Water Quality Information Sharing

Target

Actual

On On 

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Conduct Call Complaint Analysis

Target

Actual

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Employee Satisfaction Survey

Target

Actual

Shifted to 
October 2021

Complete

On 
Track

82



3) Our Community - DISTRICT HISTORICAL PLACEMAKING EFFORTS

Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                              

Two to three ideas per year from committee involving GHID in community 

placemaking.

Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                     

Annual placemaking efforts posted on website and social media.                                                                             

Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                                                                                                              

Annually identify stakeholders, conduct outreach, and actively consider input 

and ongoing improvements to the program.

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Committee Idea Development

Target

Actual

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Annual Placemaking Efforts

Target

Actual

On On 

Complete

On 
Track

On 

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Annual Program Assessment Rate

Target

Actual

On 
Track

83



Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                   

Semi-annual articles/postings on social media and/or West Valley City journal.

                                                                                                                                                                     

Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                                                                            

Evaluate salary competitiveness relative to market rate on an annual basis.

                                                                                                                                                                         

Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                     

Turnover rate comparison by benchmarked data in industry over time.                                                                        

4) Our Community - TOTAL COMPENSATION FRAMEWORK 

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Semi-annual Article Postings

Target

Actual

On 
Track

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Annual Salary Survey

Target

Series2

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Annual Turnover Rate Comparison

Target

Actual
On On 

Complete

On 
Track

84



Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                   

Stay and Exit Interview data comparison prior to and annually after rollout of 

framework.

5) Our Team - IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT COALITION AND MUTUAL AID

Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                              

Hold bi-yearly meetings with neighboring 3 Improvement Districts.

Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                                      

Maintain at least 1 emergency interconnect per water pressure zone (5 total). 

0

1

2

3

2021 2022 2023 2024

M
ee

ti
n

gs

Meetings with Improvement Districts

Target

Actual

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

2021 2022 2023 2024

In
te

rc
o

n
n

ec
ts

Total Interconnects

Target

Actual

On 
Track

On 
Track

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Stay and Exit Interview Comparison

Target

Series2

Complete

85



Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                                         

Maintain updated Interlocal Agreements with 3 neighboring entities.

6) Our Team - EMPLOYEE ADVISORY BOARD

Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                            

Quantified employee satisfaction based on survey data regarding employment, 

interaction with the public, policy and procedures … etc.  Survey Complete = 

100%.

0

1

2

3

2021 2022 2023 2024

In
te

rl
o

ca
l A

gr
ee

m
en

ts

Updated Interlocal Agreements

Target

Actual

On 
Track

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Employee Satisfaction Survey Completion

Target

Actual

On 
Track

Complete

86



7) Our Community - WATER LOSS TASK FORCE  

Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                      

Meter data collection and billing process compliance with established plan 

procedures and rate tracking of reporting safeguards.

Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                     

100% Compliance with Meter Maintenance Plan, including routine calibration 

and unit output verification, routine adaptation and update to Plan, and 

implementation.                                                                  

Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                       

Complete annual analysis and update of four-year target metrics identified in 

the Four-Year Target Metric Plan including water loss rate with supporting 

benchmarks and performance indicators.

Key Performance Indicator - 4                                                                               

Perform routine leak detection analysis of entire system on established 

completion interval with update of Mitigation Plan.

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Metering and Billing Compliance with Safeguards

Target

Actual

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Meter Maintenance Plan Compliance

Target

Actual

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Loss Rate Analysis Compliance

Target

Actual

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Leak Detection Analysis Completion Rate

Target

Actual

On On 

On 
Track 

On 
Track 

On 
Track 

On 
Track 

87



Key Performance Indicator - 5                                                                                                                            

Conduct routine system pressure management analysis, review, and 

recommendation development in line with established plan. 

Key Performance Indicator - 6                                                                                                

Conduct 100% of annual unauthorized connections assessments as outlined 

and in accordance to the Identification Plan.

Key Performance Indicator - 7                                                                                                                          

Conduct and implement 100% of Water Loss Task Force Outline and Plan 

established annual tasks.  

Key Performance Indicator - 8                                                                                                                    

Perform Legislation Management activities in line with established plan and 

with focus on emerging issues to enhance legislative and community support 

for water loss based legislation each calendar year.

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Pressure Management Analysis Completion Rate

Target

Actual

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Unauthorized Connection Assessments Completion 
Rate

Target

Actual

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
  R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Task Force Outline Objectives Completion Rate

Target

Actual

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Legislation Management Activities Completion Rate

Target

Actual

On 
Track - Plan in 
Development

Complete

Complete 

Complete

88



8) Our Operations - WATER STORAGE AND TANK FARM INTEGRATION  

Key Performance Indicator - 1                        

Ensure peak day factor remains below 3-year average (2.3).

Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                  

Ensure peak hour factor remains below 3-year average (3.4).

Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                               

Utilize 105% or less of the JVWCD contract annually. 

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

2021 2022 2023 2024

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ea
k 

D
ay

 F
ac

to
r

Jordan Valley Peak Day Factor

Target

Actual

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

2021 2022 2023 2024

A
ve

ra
ge

 P
ea

k 
H

o
u

r 
Fa

ct
o

r

Jordan Valley Peak Hour Factor 

Target

Actual

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2021 2022 2023 2024

%
 o

f 
JV

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

U
se

d

% of Jordan Valley Contract Used

Target

Actual

No 
Data

No 
Data

On 

On 
Track

89



9) Our Team - SAFETY AND EMERGENCY PLANNING UPDATES

Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                                                                  

Annual review of recordable incident rate target.

Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                             

Annual review of Preventable Vehicle Accident rate target. 

Key Performance Indicator - 3                                                                                                       

Annual update of Safety and Emergency Plans compliance.

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 R
at

e 
(P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
)

Recordable Incident Rate Review

Target

Actual

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 R
at

e 
(P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
)

Preventable Vehicle Accident Rate Review

Target

Actual

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 R

at
e 

(P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

)

Annual Update of Safety and Emergency Plans 
Completion Rate

Target

Actual

On 
Track

On 
Track

Complete

90



10) Our Operations - TEN-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS AND FINANCIAL PLAN

Key Performance Indicator - 1                                                                     

Annually update the 10-year Financial Plan.

Key Performance Indicator - 2                                                                                                                            

Annually update the 10-year Capital Improvement/Infrastructure 

Maintenance  Plan.

Key Performance Indicator - 3                                              

Evaluate net revenues required to adequately fund capital improvements and 

future bond issuances.

Key Performance Indicator - 4                                             

 Evaluate debt to equity  ratio.

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2021 2022 2023 2024

U
p

d
at

e 
%

 C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

Financial Plan Update

Target

Actual

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
IP

 P
la

n
 %

 C
o

m
p

le
te

Capital Improvement Plan Update

Target

Actual

On 
Track

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 R
at

e 
(P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
)

Debt to Equity Ratio Annual Evaluation

Target

Actual

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2021 2022 2023 2024

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 R
at

e 
(P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
)

Net Revenues Annual Evaluation

Target

Actual

On 
Track

On 
Track

On 
Track

91



 

 
 

2022 Board 
Meeting 

Calendar  

92



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
26 27 28 29 30 31 01

New Year's Day

02 03 04 05 06 07 08

09 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
Martin Luther 
King Jr. Day - 
GHID Closed

GHID Board 
Meeting 3:00 pm

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

January

Notes:

93



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
30 31 01 02 03 04 05

06 07 08 09 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
GHID Board 

Meeting 3:00 pm

20 21 22 23 24 25 26
President's Day - 
GHID Closed

27 28 01 02 03 04 05

06 07

February

Notes:

RURAL WATER - ST. GEORGE, UT

AWWA UTILITY MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE - ORLANDO, FL

94



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
27 28 01 02 03 04 05

06 07 08 09 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

Daylight Saving Time 
Begins

GHID Board 
Meeting 3:00 pm

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31 01 02

03 04

March

Notes:

95



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
27 28 29 30 31 01 02

03 04 05 06 07 08 09

EASTER
10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23
GHID Board 

Meeting 3:00 pm

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

01 02

April

Notes:

UGFOA - ST. GEORGE, UT

WEAU ANNUAL CONFERENCE - ST. GEORGE, UT

96



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
01 02 03 04 05 06 07

08 09 10 11 12 13 14

MOTHER'S DAY

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
GHID Board 

Meeting 3:00 pm

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31 01 02 03 04
Memorial Day - 
GHID Closed

05 06 Notes:

May

97



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
29 30 31 01 02 03 04

05 06 07 08 09 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

FATHER'S DAY

GHID Strategic 
Planning Meeting 8:00 
a.m. / Board Meeting 

3:00 p.m.

26 27 28 29 30 01 02

03 04 Notes:

June

GFOA - CHICAGO, IL

ACE CONFERENCE - SAN ANTONIO, TX

98



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
26 27 28 29 30 01 02

03 04 05 06 07 08 09

Independence Day

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23
GHID Board 

Meeting 3:00 pm - 
If Needed

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Pioneer Day

31 01

July

Notes:  

99



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
31 01 02 03 04 05 06

07 08 09 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
GHID Board 

Meeting 3:00 pm

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31 01 02 03

04 05

August

Notes:

100



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
28 29 30 31 01 02 03

04 05 06 07 08 09 10
Labor Day - GHID 
Closed

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24
GHID Board 

Meeting 3:00 pm

25 26 27 28 29 30 01

02 03 Notes:

September

101



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
25 26 27 28 29 30 01

02 03 04 05 06 07 08

09 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
GHID Board 

Meeting 3:00 pm

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31 Notes:

October

WEFTEC - NEW ORLEANS, LA

AWWA INTERMOUNTAIN SECTION - NOT SCHEDULED

102



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
30 31 01 02 03 04 05

06 07 08 09 10 11 12

Daylight Saving Time 
Begins

Veteran's Day - 
GHID Closed

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
GHID Board 

Meeting 3:00 pm

20 21 22 23 24 25 26
Thanksgiving - 
GHID Closed

27 28 29 30 01 02 03

04 05 Notes:

November

UASD - NOT SCHEDULED

103



2022
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
27 28 29 30 01 02 03

04 05 06 07 08 09 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17GHID Board 
Meeting 5:00 pm / 

Public Hearing 
6:00 pm

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Christmas Day

01 02 Notes:

December

104



2022 Board Meeting Schedule 
 

January 18 – 3:00 p.m. 

February 15 – 3:00 p.m. 

March 15 – 3:00 p.m. 

April 19 – 3:00 p.m. 

May 17 – 3:00 p.m. 

June 21 – Strategic Planning Mtg. 8:00 a.m. / Board Mtg. 3:00 p.m. 

July 19 – 3:00 p.m. – meeting will be held if needed 

August 16 – 3:00 p.m. 

September 20 – 3:00 p.m. 

October 18 – 3:00 p.m. 

November 15 – 3:00 p.m. 

December 13 – Board Mtg. 5:00 / Public Hearing 6:00 p.m. 

 

105



Holidays 
Jan 1 – New Year’s Day 
Jan 17 – MLK Day 
Feb 21 – President’s Day 
May 30 – Memorial Day 
July 4 – Independence Day 
July 24 – Pioneer Day 
Sept 5 – Labor Day 
Nov 11 – Veteran’s Day 
Nov 24 – Thanksgiving Day 
Dec 25 – Christmas Day 

GHID Calendar 2022 
  

 
January 2022 

S M T W T F S 
      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30 31      

 
 

 February 2022 
S M T W T F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28      
       

 
 

 March 2022 
S M T W T F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30 31   
       

 
 

     
April 2022 

S M T W T F S 
     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
       

 
 

 May 2022 
S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30 31     
       

 
 

 June 2022 
S M T W T F S 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30   
       

 
 

     
July 2022 

S M T W T F S 
     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31       

 
 

 August 2022 
S M T W T F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30 31    
       

 
 

 September 2022 
S M T W T F S 
    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30  
       

 
 

     
October 2022 

S M T W T F S 
      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30 31      

 
 

 November 2022 
S M T W T F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30    
       

 
 

 December 2022 
S M T W T F S 
    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
       

 
 

 Board Meetings 
January 18 
February 15 
March 15 
April 19 
May 17 
June 21 
July 19 
August 16 
September 20 
October 18 
November 15 
December 13 

Conferences 
AWWA Utility Mgmt Conf – Feb 21-24 – Orlando, FL 
RWAU – Feb 28-Mar 4 – St. George, UT 
WEAU – April 12-15 – St. George, UT 
UGFOA – April 25-27 – St. George, UT 
AWWA Annual Conf ACE – June 12-15 – San Antonio, TX 
GFOA – June – Not Yet Scheduled 
AWWA IMS Conf – Oct – Not Yet Scheduled 
WEFTEC – Oct 8-12 – New Orleans, LA 
UASD – Nov – Not Yet Scheduled 

Misc. 
Mar 13 – Daylight Savings June 19 – Father’s Day 
April 3 – Easter  Nov 6 – Daylight Savings 
May 8 – Mother’s Day 106



 

2022 

New Year’s Day    Saturday, January 1** 

Martin Luther King Day  Monday, January 17 

Presidents’ Day    Monday, February 21 

Memorial Day    Monday, May 30 

Independence Day   Monday, July 4 

Pioneer Day    Sunday, July 24** 

Labor Day    Monday, September 5 

Veteran’s Day    Friday, November 11** 

Thanksgiving    Thursday, November 24 

Christmas    Sunday, December 25** 

Floating Holiday 

**If a holiday falls on a day in which an employee was not scheduled to 
work due to a flex work schedule, the employee will be credited with a 
“floating” holiday that may be used during or after the pay period in 
which the holiday occurs.  This “floating” holiday must be arranged with 
your supervisor prior to taking it. 

 

Daylight Savings 
Begins: Sunday, March 13 

Ends: Sunday, November 6 

107



 

Our 
Operations 

• Fraud Risk Assessment 
• Approval Item 

• Review & Discuss Financial Report 
for October 2021 

• Review & Discuss Paid Invoice 
Report for October 2021 

• Water Maintenance Update 
• Wastewater Maintenance Update 

• Water Supply Review 
• Capital Projects Update 

• Engineering Department Update 

108



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
To: Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees 
 
From: Austin Ballard, CPA, Controller 
 
Date: November 10, 2021 
 
Subject: Fraud Risk Assessment 

 
Background 
 
The Office of the State Auditor (Office) regularly receives complaints of fraud or abuse by local 
government officials. The Office is also aware of internal investigations performed by local 
governments of their own officials and employees. Some of these situations receive significant 
media coverage, while others are resolved with less publicity. In either case, the level of concern 
by the public and local and state officials is significant. Many have asked the Office for more 
direction on how to prevent such occurrences in the future. The Fraud Risk Assessment (FRA) 
that will be reviewed in this memo is designed to help measure and reduce the risk of undetected 
fraud, abuse and noncompliance in local governments of all types and sizes. This assessment is 
a starting point; it is the hope of the Office that local governments will add to and adapt this form 
to improve how they manage their internal controls and the risk of fraud, waste and abuse. 
 

Objective 
 
The FRA is an entity self-evaluation assessment. It is broken down into nine risk areas, and each 
risk area is assigned points that are tabulated and compared to a “Risk Level” table. The table is 
broken down into the following risk level scores: 
 

Very Low Low Moderate High Very High 

>355 316-355 276-315 200-275 <200 

 
Once the entity has assessed itself in the nine areas, the assessment is “Certified” by two 
individuals. Jason Helm and Austin Ballard have certified the FRA for Granger-Hunter 
Improvement District (GHID). Once “Certified,” the FRA must be presented and discussed in a 
board meeting. During the 2021 annual financial audit, GHID’s auditor will request proof that the 
FRA was “Certified,” and that it was presented and discussed in a board meeting. The assessment 
must be submitted to the Office within six months after the end of the calendar year. It is anticipated 
that this assessment will be “Certified” and reviewed each year. It is the objective of the 
management team to achieve a score of 316 or better each year. 
 

2888 South 3600 West   •   P.O. Box 701110   •   West Valley City, Utah 84170-1110 •   Phone (801) 968-3551   •   Fax (801) 968-5467 •   www.ghid.org 

 

109



Results 
 
Out of a total of 395 points available, GHID scored 335 points.   
 
FRA Highlights 

1. The majority of points that can be earned in the assessment is with risk area number one; 
“Does the entity have adequate basic separation of duties or mitigating controls as outlined 
in the attached Basic Separation of Duties Questionnaire?”  This questionnaire has 12 
separation of duties questions that can be answered either Yes, No or Mitigating control. 
This is an all or nothing question. If any of the questions are answered, No, the entity does 
not receive any of the 200 points available. GHID answered 11 of the questions with a yes 
and one question with Mitigating Controls.  

a. The question with a mitigating control asks whether “those who collect cash or check 
payments are different from those who can make adjustments on customer 
accounts.” All billing personnel can take customer payments and make adjustments 
on customer accounts. This risk is mitigated by the Director of Administrative 
Services reviewing a report each month that summarizes all adjustments made to 
accounts. 

2. GHID has written policies in place for the following areas: conflict of interest, procurement, 
ethical behavior, reporting fraud and abuse, travel, credit/purchasing cards, personal use of 
entity assets, IT and computer security and cash receipting and deposits. 

3. GHID has a licensed CPA as part of its management team. In addition, it has a member of 
its team who has at least a bachelor’s degree in accounting. 

4. Every year, GHID requires its employees to review the employee handbook and 
acknowledge that they have read and understand the contents. Part of that content is 
GHID’s policy regarding ethical behavior that each employee agrees to abide by. 

5. Each board member has completed the State Auditor online training at least once in the 
last four years. 

6. Each year at least one member of the management team receives at least 40 hours of 
formal training related to accounting, budgeting or other financial areas. 

 
FRA areas for improvement 

7. GHID is in the process of reviewing and adjusting its whistleblower policy. As soon as that 
policy is adopted the District will qualify to receive the points for this item. 

8. GHID does not have a formal internal audit function.  
9. GHID does not have a formal audit committee to be able to qualify for the points on this 

item. However, many audit committee functions are performed during monthly board 
meetings. Examples of some audit committee functions performed during the monthly board 
meeting include: reviewing the financial report, reviewing the paid check report, reviewing 
and approving budget amounts and fee increases, reviewing this FRA, approving 
procurement contracts, approving external auditor selection, engaging an external auditor 
to conduct annual audits and reviewing those findings each year and overseeing various 
statutory functions that include elections and public hearings. 

 
If you have any questions regarding this memo, feel free to contact me at 801-955-2206. Thank 
you for your time reviewing this assessment. 

110



111



112



 

 
 

Municipal 
Advisory Service 

Approval Item  

113



 
 

 
 

2888 South 3600 West   •   P.O. Box 701110   •   West Valley City, Utah 84170-1110 •   Phone (801) 968-3551   •   Fax (801) 968-5467 •   www.ghid.org 

 
 
Date:  November 10, 2021 
 
To:  Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Austin Ballard, CPA, Controller 
 
Subject: Recommendation to Award Municipal Advisor Contract to Zions Public Finance 

 
The 2022 Budget includes an assumption that the District, subject to Board approval, will 
issue a $17 million bond to finance several water and wastewater projects. To help facilitate 
the purchase of the bond, the District is seeking professional services from a Municipal 
Advisor who will help the District structure, market and sell the bonds to either a State Agency, 
through private placement or in a public debt offering. The proposed contract is for a three-
year term with the option to renew annually afterwards for an additional two years. 
 
A Request for Proposal (RFP) was posted on the State of Utah’s website (Utah Public 
Procurement Place, a.k.a. SciQuest), in accordance with State of Utah Procurement Code 
63G(6a). Two firms responded, Zions Public Finance, Inc. and Lewis, Young, Robertson, and 
Burningham, both of which were qualified. The selection committee consisted of District staff 
Austin Ballard-Controller, Jason Helm-General Manager, Todd Marti-Assistant General 
Manager/District Engineer and Troy Stout-Assistant General Manager/COO. The committee 
ranked the two proposals based on the pre-established criteria of the RFP: firm qualifications 
and support team, assessment of work to be performed, historical performance and cost of 
services. The District also requested a “Best and Final Offer,” in accordance with State of 
Utah Procurement Code, from the firms relating to the cost of issuance per $1,000 bond 
issuance. The committee results were as follows:  
 

Municipal Advisor  Score 

Zions Public Finance, Inc. 86 

Proposer 2 85 

 
There is no financial obligation to the District to pay Zions Public Finance for fees or services 
until bonds are issued. 
 
The District recommends approving a contract with Zions Public Finance, Inc. for Municipal 
Advisor Services.  

114



 

 
 
 

October 2021 
Financial 

Report 

115



     Page 1 of 3

REVENUES

Amended

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

10/31/2021 2020 Budget 10/31/2021 2021 Budget

REVENUES

Operating Revenues:

Water Sales $ 18,549,309 $ 19,728,000 94.0% $ 16,485,512 $ 19,884,000 82.9%

Sewer Service Charges 9,158,863   11,807,000 77.6% 9,131,052   11,677,000 78.2%

Central Valley Assessmt 2,237,630   2,700,000   82.9% 2,253,218   2,700,000   83.5%

Engineering Fees 7,342          6,000          122.4% 8,049          7,000          115.0%

Connection fees 34,638        34,000        101.9% 27,298        40,000        68.2%

Inspection 66,259        49,000        135.2% 57,387        55,000        104.3%

Delinquent/Turn-on Fees 9,290          35,000        26.5% 6,260          35,000        17.9%

Conservation Grant 48,390        68,500        70.6% 34,570        41,300        83.7%

Total Operating Revenue 30,111,721 34,427,500 87.5% 28,003,346 34,439,300 81.3%

Property Tax Revenue:

Property Tax 60,326        3,400,000   1.8% 324,738      3,400,000   9.6%

Motor Vehicle 166,513      250,000      66.6% 186,803      250,000      74.7%

Personal Property 320,889      325,000      98.7% 321,269      325,000      98.9%

Delinquent Tax/Interest 56,955        80,000        71.2% 57,258        80,000        71.6%

Tax Increment for RDA -                  200,000      0.0% -                  200,000      0.0%

Total Property Tax Revenue 604,683      4,255,000   14.2% 890,068      4,255,000   20.9%

Non-operating Revenue:

Impact Fees - Water 704,991      300,000      235.0% 498,037      450,000      110.7%

Impact Fees - Sewer 371,139      150,000      247.4% 273,266      200,000      136.6%

Interest 287,892      525,000      54.8% 143,416      250,000      57.4%

Sale of Surplus Equipment 6,279          59,000        10.6% 21,967        40,000        54.9%

Other 108,741      120,000      90.6% 100,353      120,000      83.6%

Total Non-operating Revenue 1,479,042   1,154,000   128.2% 1,037,039   1,060,000   97.8%

Total Revenues $ 32,195,446 $ 39,836,500 80.8% $ 29,930,453 $ 39,754,300 75.3%

Percent of Year Completed: 83.33%

116



Page 2 of 3

 EXPENSES

Amended

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

10/31/2021 2020 Budget 10/31/2021 2021 Budget

EXPENSES

Payroll Wages:

Salaries & Wages $ 4,244,711   $ 5,028,072     84.4% $ 3,843,433     $ 4,893,240      78.5%

Overtime Wages 95,021        175,000        54.3% 74,675          175,000         42.7%

On-call Pay 56,371        71,280          79.1% 56,337          71,280           79.0%

Incentive Pay 7,627          15,000          50.8% 7,105            15,000           47.4%

Vehicle Allowance 5,166          9,000            57.4% 4,968            9,000             55.2%

Other/OPEB 327,131      250,000        130.9% (1,062)           250,000         -0.4%

Clothing Allowance 18,975        22,000          86.3% 20,625          21,450           96.2%

   Total Payroll Wages 4,755,002   5,570,352     85.4% 4,006,081     5,434,970      73.7%

Payroll Benefits:

State Retirement Plan 677,232      955,045        70.9% 684,548        947,920         72.2%

401K Plan 510,324      598,677        85.2% 462,635        594,210         77.9%

Health/Dental Insurance 1,183,426   1,670,320     70.9% 1,343,292     1,687,023      79.6%

Medicare 63,407        73,547          86.2% 57,011          72,730           78.4%

Workers Compensation Ins 17,202        40,000          43.0% 28,889          40,000           72.2%

Life/LTD/LTC Insurance 61,573        75,000          82.1% 84,380          75,000           112.5%

State Unemployment 7,784          5,000            155.7% -                    10,000           0.0%

   Total Payroll Benefits 2,520,948   3,417,589     73.8% 2,660,755     3,426,883      77.6%

Operations & Maintenance:

Repair & Replacement 477,818      655,560        72.9% 575,732        731,400         78.7%

Building & Grounds 60,591        82,450          73.5% 54,033          82,450           65.5%

Vehicle Maint & Fuel 129,738      189,431        68.5% 168,203        193,680         86.8%

Vehicle Lease 184,216      254,600        72.4% 186,437        225,800         82.6%

Tools & Supplies 55,896        73,400          76.2% 60,764          89,750           67.7%

Water Purchases 9,623,292   11,010,400   87.4% 8,890,706     10,717,260    83.0%

Treatment Chemicals 34,720        41,300          84.1% 40,011          41,300           96.9%

Water Lab Testing Fees 37,124        76,750          48.4% 15,997          66,500           24.1%

Utilities 749,491      982,000        76.3% 721,798        905,000         79.8%

  Total O&M 11,352,886 13,365,891   84.9% 10,713,681   13,053,140    82.1%

CVWRF:

Facility Operations 3,052,857   4,494,860     67.9% 3,835,797     5,517,471      69.5%

Project Betterments 642,056      1,360,725     47.2% 1,175,329     1,748,831      67.2%

Interceptor Monitoring (2,967)         -                    0.0% -                    -                     0.0%

Pre-treatment Field 195,470      283,675        68.9% 274,088        286,024         95.8%

Laboratory 173,523      227,418        76.3% 222,884        251,563         88.6%

CVW Debt Service 1,590,120   1,954,999     81.3% 3,086,097     3,311,053      93.2%

  Total CVWRF $ 5,651,059   $ 8,321,677     67.9% $ 8,594,195     $ 11,114,942    77.3%

117



Page 3 of 3

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

10/31/2021 2020 Budget 10/31/2021 2021 Budget

General & Administrative:

Office Supplies/Printing $ 12,064        $ 33,940          35.5% $ 11,094          $ 27,840           39.8%

Postage & Mailing 108,778      159,500        68.2% 110,758        155,550         71.2%

General Administrative 43,390        61,000          71.1% 42,145          133,810         31.5%

Computer Supplies 343,629      494,243        69.5% 378,374        471,167         80.3%

General Insurance 274,362      439,612        62.4% 294,192        360,595         81.6%

Utilities 60,416        95,500          63.3% 58,195          95,500           60.9%

Telephone 88,346        120,200        73.5% 96,998          113,600         85.4%

Training & Education 44,195        133,200        33.2% 34,232          97,475           35.1%

Safety 35,492        39,620          89.6% 28,883          40,620           71.1%

Legal fees 34,227        44,000          77.8% 28,863          54,000           53.5%

Auditing Fees 12,000        12,000          100.0% 12,000          12,000           100.0%

Professional Consulting 52,819        97,400          54.2% 186,811        347,400         53.8%

Public Relations/Conservation 22,743        55,000          41.4% 70,552          98,500           71.6%

Banking & Bonding 288,348      330,900        87.1% 294,226        332,900         88.4%

Admin Contingency -                  180,000        0.0% -                    180,000         0.0%

  Total General Administrative 1,420,809   2,296,115     61.9% 1,647,323     2,520,957      65.3%

Total Operating Expenses 25,700,704 32,971,624   77.9% 27,622,035   35,550,892    77.7%

Net Operating Revenues 6,494,742   6,864,876     94.6% 2,308,418     4,203,408      54.9%

Indirect Operating Expenses:

Depreciation 6,483,750   7,700,000     84.2% 6,628,499     8,000,000      82.9%

RDA Pass-Through -                  200,000        0.0% -                    200,000         0.0%

  Total Indirect Operating Exp 6,483,750   7,900,000     82.1% 6,628,499     8,200,000      80.8%

Equipment and Infrastructure:

Infrastructure 5,563,828   15,746,152   35.3% 4,587,490     21,212,000    21.6%

New Vehicles & Equipment 380,509      409,747        92.9% 153,993        625,810         24.6%

  Total Equipment 5,944,337   16,155,899   36.8% 4,741,483     21,837,810    21.7%

Debt Service:

Bond Interest and Fees 22,971        244,995        9.4% 36,781          207,388         17.7%

Bond Principal Pmt ('12 Bond) 288,000      288,000        100.0% 295,000        311,000         94.9%

Bond Princ Pmt (2019 DEQ) 435,525      310,000        140.5% 532,000        532,000         100.0%

  Total Debt Service 746,496      842,995        88.6% 863,781        1,050,388      82.2%

Total Equip & Debt Service 6,690,833   16,998,894   39.4% 5,605,264     22,888,198    24.5%

Net Revenues (6,679,841)  (18,034,018)  37.0% (9,925,345)    (26,884,790)   36.9%

Infrastructure and Debt

Add back Depreciation 6,483,750   7,700,000     84.2% 6,628,499     8,000,000      82.9%

Add back Infrastructure 5,563,828   15,746,152   35.3% 4,587,490     21,212,000    21.6%

Net Revenues, net of Infr & Depr $ 5,367,737   $ 5,412,134     99.2% $ 1,290,644     $ 2,327,210      55.5%

118



Page 1 of 1

Cost Savings for 2021

Original Adjusted Net Savings

Cost Savings - Description Account Budget Budget 2022 Carryover Notes

General Administrative

Trustee Election 510430 $75,000

Property Tax Notices 510430 $13,000

Employee Advisory Board 510430 $1,000

Placemaking Committee 510430 $1,000

Total General Administrative $75,000 $15,000 $60,000

Water Testing Fees

Culinary Water Testing 520270 $31,000

Rountine Testing 520270 $15,000

Investigative Sampling 520270 $2,000

Total Water Testing Fees $31,000 $17,000 $14,000

Water Supply Expense

Jordan Valley Water 530250 $10,717,260

Actual Use 530250 $8,890,706

Projected Use 530250 $1,323,649

Total Water Supply Expense $10,717,260 $10,214,355 $502,905

Wastewater - Machinery & Equipment

Vactor Truck 550910 $450,000 Will be paid for in 2022

Total Wastewate - Mach & Equip $450,000 $0 $450,000

Total Cost Savings $11,273,260 $10,246,355 $1,026,905

2022 Committed Funds ($450,000)

Net 2021 Cost Savings $576,905

*All unused 2021 budget will be carried over to use for 2022 Capital Expenditures

119



 

 
 
 

October 2021 
Paid Invoice 

Report 

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



 

 
 
 

Water 
Maintenance 

Update 

155



Water Systems Update 

2021 Data:

 7 Breaks in October

 50 Breaks Year-to-Date

 21% Below YTD Four-Year 
Average 

 October Breaks Below the
Average of 7.75 Breaks

Long Term Break Rate Target 
Development Considerations:

 Level of Service Targets / 
Disruption of Service Rates

 Water Quality Impacts

 Water Rate Impacts

 Claim Exposure

 System Reliability 
156



Water Systems Update 

Waterline breaks and leaks totaled seven breaks and three service leaks in October 2021.  

Water Breaks and Leaks Four Year Average Trends

The District’s total ruptures continued below the four-year average trendline 
for October 2021.

157



Water Systems 
Update

4100 South Abandonment Project
District’s water systems maintenance crews 
bypassed approximately one mile of aged six-inch 
cast-iron pipe along 4100 south between 7200 West 
and 6400 West.  To complete the project crews 
installed 380 feet of eight-inch PVC water pipe in a 
new interconnecting alignment, four fire hydrants, 
two service connections, four water main-line 
connections and completed three water mainline 
abandonments.  

This project was a great success that maintains 
system functionality while providing significant 
avoided cost savings associated with the 
replacement of one mile of existing 8-inch diameter 
pipeline infrastructure..

158



Water Systems Update

2021 Data:

 129 corrective valve work orders have been completed to-date. One 
work order was completed in October. Five were created to-date, and
54 currently remain open. 

 The valve maintenance crew has completed 3897 planned valve work 
orders to date. Crews completed 1025 planned valve maintenance work 
orders in the month of October. We are currently 1.2% above are target 
for the year. 

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

Corrective Valve Maintenance
129 of 143             -12.77%

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
4000
4500
5000

Planned Valve Maintenance

3897 of 3850           1.2%

159



Water Systems Update

2021 Data:

 Valve crews have located 25 valves off to date. All valves found off have 
been turned back on. In the month of October, crews found one valve 
off and restored it back to service.   

 125 corrective valve work orders have been completed to date. The 
goal is to have the valve repaired or replaced within ten days from the 
creation of the work order. The corrective valve work order completed 
efficiency graph shows our progress and efficiency.  In the month of 
October, one valve work order was completed within ten days.

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Valve Work Order Efficiency

Completed Within 10 Days Not Completed Within 10 Days

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Valves Found Off Rate

25 of 30              25%

160



Water Systems Update 

2021 Data:

 The planned fire hydrant maintenance is complete for the year, and 
crews are now working on scheduled valve maintenance.   

 Fire hydrant work order efficiency during the month of October 
consisted mainly of fire hydrants that needed minor repairs reported by 
the planned fire hydrant inspections.  Currently we have 292 open fire 
hydrant work orders, most of the open work orders are for minor 
repairs. In the month of October crews closed 15 fire hydrant work 
orders. To date crews have completed and closed 305 fire hydrant 
repair work orders.   

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
4000

Planned Fire Hydrant Maintenance

3595 of 2880                 24.83%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Fire Hydrant Work Order Efficiency

Completed within 10 days Not completed within 10 days

161



Water Systems Update 

2021 Data:

 To date, we have had 44 fire hydrants tagged out of service for repairs 
or replacements. We replaced 4 hydrants that were out of service 
during the month of October, we currently still have 6 fire hydrants 
tagged out of service. Crews will continue to replace them during the 
month of November. 

 The District’s fire hydrant crew did not complete any scheduled paint 
prep or fire hydrant painting in the month of September. We are not 
scheduling any painting for the remainder of the year; we want to focus 
our efforts on scheduled valve maintenance and fire hydrant repairs for 
the remainder of the year.  

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Fire Hydrants Coated To-Date with Target

90 of 348              -74.1%

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

Hydrant Effectiveness Out of Service Rate

44 of 20           120%

162



Water Systems Update 

2021 Data:

 52 of 52 daily routine scheduled maintenance inspections were 
completed in October. 724 of 949 daily routine scheduled maintenance 
inspections have been completed to date.  

 All the Weekly routine maintenance tasks have been completed  in line 
with manufacturer recommendations for the month of October. 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Daily Scheduled Routine Maintenance

724 of 949           -23.7%

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Weekly Scheduled Routine Maintenance

397 of 397             100%

163



Water Systems Update 

2021 Data:

 All the Monthly scheduled routine maintenance has been completed at 
all the water sites for the month of October.  

 There were 0 quarterly scheduled routine maintenance tasks for the 
month of October.  Next scheduled quarterly routine maintenance tasks 
are scheduled to be completed in November 2021.   

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Monthly Scheduled Routine Maintenance

95 of 95   100%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Quarterly Scheduled Routine Maintenance

36 of 36         100%

164



Water Systems Update 

2021 Data:

 The water maintenance crews have completed 23 PRV maintenance 
inspections during the month of October.  District crews have 
completed 195 out of 195 PRV inspections for the year.  

 Crews have had to complete 78 reactive work orders to date. In the 
month of October there was 4 completed. Reactive work orders are 
work orders created when an emergency or event outside of routine 
maintenance occurs. Our target goal is 10 or less reactive work orders 
per month. 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Monthly PRV Scheduled Routine Maintenance

195 of 195           100%

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Reactive Work Orders Completed

78 of 100              -22%

165



 

 
 

Wastewater 
Maintenance 

Update 

166



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

Wastewater Maintenance Report
• The WWPS crews were able to install 2 new channel grinders at 

Armstrong WWPS and 1 new channel grinder at Decker Main 
WWPS.

• The Wastewater Maintenance crews accomplished getting all 
hotspots cleaned during the month of October

• One of our Wastewater foreman has been training the newest 
employee of the Wastewater department, Hunter Miller for the 
past 3 weeks.

167



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

Variance Description – CCTV Foreman are doing great and exceeding 
their set targets for CCTV inspecting the District’s pipelines.

Variance Description – We are still trending on target. We are down 
to 1 fully operational combination truck. With being on target for 
system cleaning our focus will shift to get manhole inspections on 
target throughout the year.

Variance Description – Hotspots were completed in October, and we 
met our target for the year, as well as being able to remove some of the 
Hotspots per CCTV inspection reports.

Variance Description – We currently remain slightly below our target 
but hope to meet this target by the end of the year. Manhole 
inspections will be a high priority throughout the next two months to 
finish out 2021.

0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

Collection System Cleaning

Target Actuals

152 Mi 1.31 % 

0

20

40

60

80

100
Collection System CCTV

Target Actuals

77.2 Mi 23.60 %

0
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000
7000
8000

Manhole Inspection 

Target Actuals

3,269 18.44 %

0

5

10

15

20

25

Collection System Hot Spot Cleaning

Target Actuals

20.1 Mi 0.03 %

168



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

Variance Description – Our WWPS crew is transitioning from WO workflows to 
Inspection workflows, primarily to ensure each station is visited at least weekly, and 
to prevent reactive maintenance work needing to be performed. This is still being 
adjusted and evaluated to find the proper measure baseline

Variance Description – We had more than expected reactive maintenance 
performed during the month of August,. With  10/14 of the reactive WO’s being 
performed at Armstrong WWPS. We are striving to meet our goal of 7 or less 
reactive WO’s. The number of reactive maintenance WO’s should significantly 
decrease, now that we have 2 new channel grinders installed at Armstrong.

Variance Description – Our WWPS crew is working diligently on preventative 
maintenance. We are slightly below our target, mostly due to a changing our 
workflows from WO’s to Inspections and trying to find an  appropriate measure 
baseline.

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200

WWPS Preventative Maintenance WO Totals

Target Actuals

861 WO's 4.43 %

0

20

40

60

80

100

WWPS Reactive Maintenance WO Totals

Target Actuals

88 WO's 25.71 %

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

WWPS Inspections

Target Actuals

5.00 %126 Insp

169



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

Inspections, 11, 73%

Education, 2, 13%

Cleaning Notices 
Complete, 1, 7%

Cleaning Notices 
Incomplete, 1, 7%

Other, 2, 14%

FOG PROGRAM - OCTOBER 

Inspections Education Cleaning Notices Complete Cleaning Notices Incomplete

8

28

15 15

28
25

17 18

37

11

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

In
sp

ec
tio

ns

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Grease Interceptor Inspections - 2021

# Inspected Projected % Complete Actual % Complete

170



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

The surrounding area average BOD/TSS numbers come from 2020 data collected from the following entities:  South Valley Sewer District, South Davis 
Sewer District, Snyderville Basin Water Reclamation Facility, Timpanogos Special Service District, and Springville City. More Data is being collected to 
better understand where our sewer strength levels stand.

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

300.00

350.00

BOD - Concentration

GHID BOD GHID 3 Year Average

Wasatch Front AVG BOD - 2020 CVWRF BOD - 2020

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

300.00

TSS - Concentration

GHID TSS GHID 3 Year Average

Wasatch Front AVG TSS - 2020 CVWRF TSS - 2020

171



 

 
 

 
Water Supply 

Review 

172



Water Production  

Total water produced through October (acre-ft):

2020 2021 5-year
25,773.86 20,917.22 22,688.00

18.84% 8.47%

0.00

500.00

1000.00

1500.00

2000.00

2500.00

3000.00

3500.00

4000.00

4500.00

5000.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

AC
RE

 F
EE

T

Combined Source Total Water Produced 

Total AVG Last 5 years 2020 2021

Total water purchased from JVWCD equals  
15,878.41 acre-ft. Based on our last five-
year average we anticipate using another 
1,971.11 acre-ft which would put us at  
17,849.52 acre-ft for the year. If the current 
trends continue, we should end the year 
using about 96.5% of our JVWCD contract.

173



Water Production

*estimated 

76%

24%

2021 YTD PRODUCTION BY SOURCE

JVWCD GHID Wells

5%

15%

34%

15%

20%

11%

2021 YTD WELL PRODUCTION

Well 1 Well 8 Well 12 Well 15 Well 16 Well 17

174



Water Production

85.83%
Percentage of contract used.

(as of 11/2/2021)

(200.00)

0.00

200.00

400.00

600.00

800.00

1,000.00

1,200.00

1,400.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

AC
RE

 F
EE

T

GHID Deep Wells

5 Year AVG 2020 2021

0.00

5,000.00

10,000.00

15,000.00

20,000.00

25,000.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

AC
RE

 F
EE

T

ACCUMULATIVE JVWCD WATER CONSUMPTION

Goal Trend Line 2019 Accumulative Use
2020 Accumulative Use 2021 Accumulative Use

175



Sewer Pumped

In October we averaged 11.7 MGD of wastewater sent to CVWRF.

176



 

 
 

 
Capital Projects 

Update 

177



Capital Projects Status
20A&I: 3100 South to 4100 South Redwood Road Water and 
Sewer Project
Capital Project: Redwood Road Pipeline Replacement (4100 South to

3100 South) & Valley Fair Mall Feedlines

Project Description: Replace aging distribution piping in Redwood Road and
construct a new sewer line running north to provide additional capacity for new
growth. The pipelines will be funded by the Utah SRF and sewer lines will be funded
by District impact fees.

Project Update: Design is ongoing. A UDOT coordination meeting was held on 
October 21. In this meeting, UDOT representatives outlined design and 
construction requirements for the work in UDOT’s right-of-way. Pipelines will be 
installed via open cut. As this project includes the installation of a sewer line and 
two waterlines (one on each side of Redwood Road), in order to minimize traffic 
disturbance and impact, UDOT recommends that only one of the three new utilities 
be constructed at a time. The project is expected to span multiple construction 
seasons.

20B: Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plant
Capital Project: Wells 1, 12, 17 Treatment Facility

Project Description: A new water treatment facility to remove iron, manganese and
ammonia from Wells No. 1, 12 and 17 at the Well No. 12 site at 1490 West 3100
South.

Project Update: A preconstruction meeting was held November 2. The contractor is
working on submitting the required contract documents. It is anticipated that
construction will begin mid-December. A meeting was held with the neighboring
Jordan Meadows Townhomes HOA to discuss the project.

Consultant: Bowen, Collins & 
Associates Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract: $390,000.00 Original 

Contract: $-

Current 
Contract: $390,000.00 Current 

Contract: $-

% Contract 
Change: 0% % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: $67,737.50 Amount Paid: $-

% Complete: 67% % Complete: 0%

Consultant: JUB Engineers, Inc. Contractor: Nelson Brothers 
Construction

Original 
Contract: $581,470.00 Original 

Contract: $9,707,890.38

Current 
Contract: $1,495,144.00 Current 

Contract: $9,707,890.38

% Contract 
Change: 157% % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: $676,744.00 Amount Paid: $0.00

% Complete: 45% % Complete: 0%

178



20B-1: RGWTP Waterlines Project
Capital Project: Wells 1, 12, 17 Treatment Facility

Project Description: As part of the Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plant, piping
modifications are necessary in 3300 South and 3100 South.

Project Update: A Preconstruction Meeting was held on August 10, 2021 and
Notice to Proceed has been issued. In order to prevent winter-time weather delays
within UDOT ROW, the contractor will start work next spring.

20D: Kent Booster Pump Station Replacement and Tank 
Purchase
Capital Project: Tank Farm Booster Replacement/Tank

Purchase/Energy Improvements Project

Project Description: Replacement of the existing Kent Booster Pump Station at
Tank Farm (4400 South 4800 West), site piping replacements, and purchase of
one existing 5 MG Jordan Valley Water tank.

Project Update: On October 21, the consultant submitted the completed plans to
the Division of Drinking Water for their review. The District is in the process of
obtaining a License Agreement with the Utah & Salt Lake Canal to install a 36-inch
steel waterline (inside a 48-inch steel casing) and two 16-inch PVC waterlines
(inside 28-inch steel casings) under the canal. Bidding is anticipated to occur in
January.

Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District will consider the approval of the sale of
the reservoir and associated property at their November 10th Board Meeting.

Capital Projects Status

Waterline Alignment

Consultant: JUB Engineers, Inc. Contractor: Silver Spur 
Construction

Original 
Contract: part of RGWTP Original 

Contract: $1,172,500.00

Current 
Contract: part of RGWTP Current 

Contract: $1,172,500.00

% Contract 
Change: part of RGWTP % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: part of RGWTP Amount Paid: $0.00

% Complete: part of RGWTP % Complete: 0%

Consultant: HA&L Engineers Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract: $334,146.23 Original 

Contract: $0.00 

Current 
Contract: $392,430.47 Current 

Contract: $0.00

% Contract 
Change: 17% % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: $360,910.62 Amount Paid: $0.00

% Complete: 92% % Complete: 0%

179



20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement
Capital Project: Pioneer WWPS Replacement &

Pipeline/ Forcemain Upgrades

Project Description: Replacement of the existing 500 GPM Pioneer Wastewater
Pump Station located at 2250 South Constitution Boulevard with a new pump
station to be located at 2184 South Constitution Boulevard.

Project Update: Submittal review is ongoing. The removal of the Brighton Canal box
culvert and installation of the West Valley City storm drain has been pushed back to
mid-December.

20G: Building B Addition and Remodel
Capital Project: Building B Remodel/Addition

Project Description: Upgrades/repair of the Building B, including bathroom and
kitchen remodel, and remodel of the mezzanine and/or addition.

Project Update: A preconstruction meeting was held on October 13, 2021.
Construction is now underway. Crews have started the interior demolition of the
building and foundation excavation for the building addition.

Capital Projects Status

Consultant: Bowen, Collins & 
Associates Contractor: COP Construction, LLC

Original 
Contract: $165,104.00 Original 

Contract: $     4,117,000.00 

Current 
Contract: $371,754.00 Current 

Contract: $     4,117,000.00 

% Contract 
Change: 125% % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: $245,178.50 Amount Paid: $0.00 

% Complete: 66% % Complete: 0%

Consultant: EDA, Inc. Contractor: Broderick & Henderson 
Construction, LC

Original 
Contract: $165,026.00 Original 

Contract: $1,410,500.00 

Current 
Contract: $231,071.00 Current 

Contract: $1,410,500.00 

% Contract 
Change: 40% % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: $184,748.00 Amount Paid: $0.00  

% Complete: 80% % Complete: 0%

180



20G-1: Building B Reroof
Capital Project: Building B Remodel/Addition

Project Description: Replacement of the Building B roof. Replacement will include a
new PVC roof membrane, walkway pad, roof hatch guardrail system, metal roof
deck and insulation infill, mechanical curb, and roof ladder.

Project Update: The contractor has delivered the roof membrane material to the
site. It is anticipated that the removal and installation work will be begin within the
next week.

Capital Projects Status
21A: Large Meter Replacements
Capital Project: Meter Vault Upgrades

Project Description: Remove existing water meters and replace with new 4-inch, 6-
inch, and 8-inch vaults at various locations in West Valley City. This is one of the
District’s annual recurring maintenance/replacement projects.

Project Update: The contractor plans to start their work at Willow Wood within the
next week.

Consultant: EDA, Inc. Contractor: North Face Roofing, Inc.

Original 
Contract: with Building B Project Original 

Contract: $98,600.00 

Current 
Contract: with Building B Project Current 

Contract: $98,600.00 

% Contract 
Change: with Building B Project % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: with Building B Project Amount Paid: $0.00   

% Complete: with Building B Project % Complete: 0%

Consultant: In-House (GHID) Contractor: Beck Construction 
& Excavation, Inc.

Original 
Contract: - Original 

Contract: $517,750.00

Current 
Contract: - Current 

Contract: $525,638.30

% Contract 
Change: - % Change 

Order 2%

Amount Paid: - Amount Paid: $0.00

% Complete: - % Complete: 0%

181



Capital Projects Status
21C: Kearns Interconnects along 4700 South
Capital Project: Kearns Improvement District Emergency

Interconnections

Project Description: Kearns Improvement District has requested new emergency
water interconnects along 4700 South. GHID and KID have an existing interconnect
at 6000 West and 4750 South.

Project Update: A kick-off meeting with Kearns Improvement District was held on
August 26th. An existing meter vault with Jordan Valley Water and Kearns I.D. may be
able to be used as an interconnect. Installing an additional interconnect at 4700 S.
5200 W.

21D: Enterprise Resource Planning Software Replacement
Capital Project: Incode v10 Upgrade

Project Description: Replacement of the District’s Enterprise Resource Planning
(Financial) software to Incode v10 as Incode v9 is at the end of its useful life.

Project Update: New servers have been delivered and are being configured. Incode
10 is scheduled to be installed by the end of November.

Consultant: Tyler Technologies, 
Inc.

Original 
Contract: $67,748.00 

Current 
Contract: $67,748.00 

% Contract 
Change: 0%

Amount Paid: $0

% Complete: 25%

Consultant: In-House (GHID) Contractor: In-house

Original 
Contract: - Original 

Contract: $0.00 

Current 
Contract: - Current 

Contract: $0.00 

% Contract 
Change: - % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: - Amount Paid: $0.00 

% Complete: 100% % Complete: 0%

182



Capital Projects Status
21F: SCADA Modernization Project
Capital Project: SCADA Modifications/Upgrades

Project Description: Upgrades and modifications to the District’s existing
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system. This project will
modernize the AVEVA System but adding object-based tags and creating high-
performance graphics, along with upgrading aging and obsolete hardware.

Project Update: New SCADA servers are being configured and are awaiting
additional parts. The consultant is working on new standards and is meeting weekly
with District staff.

21G: Manhole Rehabilitation Project
Capital Project: Sewer Lining and Manhole Rehabilitation

Project Description: Rehabilitation of thirty (30) sewer manhole collars throughout the West
Valley City area by raising manholes to grade and pouring concrete collars.

Project Update: The contractor is working on submitting the required contract documents. It is
anticipated that construction will begin this winter.

Site Locations

Consultant: APCO

Original 
Contract: $180,000.00 

Current 
Contract: $194,163.86 

% Contract 
Change: 8%

Amount Paid: $38,902.97

% Complete: 22%

Consultant: In-House (GHID) Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract: - Original 

Contract: $92,000.00

Current 
Contract: - Current 

Contract: $92,000.00

% Contract 
Change: - % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: - Amount Paid: $0.00

% Complete: - % Complete: 0%

183



21H: Well No. 16 Chlorinator
Capital Project: Chlorine Generation Equip – Well No. 16

Project Description: The budget for this project was originally allocated toward
Well No. 1. After additional review of the well it was determined that the budget
should be reallocated toward Well No. 16. The Well No. 16 chlorination
equipment has reached its lifespan and the water demand from this well is higher
than Well No. 1. The new equipment will help the District avoid future
maintenance and parts supply issues.

Project Update: The RFP for the sodium hypochlorite system was posted to Utah
Public Procurement Place (U3P) on October 26. Proposals will be reviewed after
the submittal deadline on November 16. Once the sodium hypochlorite system
has been determined the design for the system will begin. It is anticipated that
Construction will begin early Spring.

Capital Projects Status
21I: Interceptor Vault Modifications
Capital Project: Interceptor Improvements

Project Description: Replace the lid of the main District interceptor vault at 1488 W.
3100 S. to improve maintenance access and better match new asphalt elevations.

Project Update: See 20B: Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plant project update.

Consultant: Sunrise 
Engineering Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract: $39,500.00 Original 

Contract: $0.00

Current 
Contract: $39,500.00 Current 

Contract: $0.00

% Contract 
Change: 0% % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: $4,961.00 Amount Paid: $0.00

% Complete: 13% % Complete: 0%

Consultant: J-U-B Engineers Contractor: Nelson Brothers 
Construction

Original 
Contract: $26,000.00 Original 

Contract: $135,731.00

Current 
Contract: $26,000.00 Current 

Contract: $135,731.00

% Contract 
Change: 0% % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: $11,023.00 Amount Paid: $0.00

% Complete: 42% % Complete: 0%

184



Capital Projects Status
21J: GHID Headquarters Landscaping Phase 2
Capital Project: Headquarters Landscaping Phase 2 (South End)

Project Description: Phase 2 landscaping will include landscape improvements along
the south side of the GHID Headquarter property. Priority locations are the pond,
southwest side along the wall and south entrance.

Project Update: The 30% preliminary construction drawings have been reviewed
and 60% design is now underway. It is anticipated that the 60% design will be
completed the beginning of December.

30% Preliminary 
Design

Consultant: J-U-B Engineers Contractor: To Be Determined

Original 
Contract: $56,000.00 Original 

Contract: $0.00

Current 
Contract: $56,000.00 Current 

Contract: $0.00

% Contract 
Change: 0% % Change 

Order 0%

Amount Paid: $0.00 Amount Paid: $0.00

% Complete: 0% % Complete: 0%

185



Master Plan Update, Rate Study & Impact Fee Analysis Update
Project: Master Plan, Rate & Impact Fee Study & Long-Term Capital Facility Plan – Operations & Maintenance (Eng. Consulting) 

Project Description: In order to best determine rates and impact fees, it is necessary to complete an updated Master Plan (for both the Water and Wastewater systems) and a 
20-year Capital and Infrastructure Maintenance Plan. Following completion of the plans, the Consultant (or sub-consultant) will complete the Rate Study and Impact Fee 
Analysis. This project will be complete in time to set rates for 2021. 

Project Update: The Master Plans for the water and wastewater systems are in progress. Final rates have been recommended. The Infrastructure Management Plan is in 
progress.

Consultant: Bowen, Collins & 
Associates

Original 
Contract: $284,388

Current 
Contract: $284,388

% Contract 
Change: 0%

Amount Paid: $167,892.00 

% Complete: 59%

186



Small Projects:
Water Innovation Center:

Project Description:  Modifying the old Well No. 7 pump house in Chesterfield to use 
as a pipe coupon exhibit and training area. Design and construction by District staff.

Project Update: The outer walls are complete. Interior furnishing is ongoing.

Taylorsville-Bennion Improvement District Interlocal Agreement

Project Description: Formalize the interlocal agreement with TBID regarding shared 
utility service (i.e. GHID provides water service, TBID provides wastewater service). 

Project Update: The interlocal agreement is complete.

Capital Projects Status

187



Ca
pi

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

M
ap

188



 

 
 

Engineering 
Department 

Update 

189



Engineering Report

Plan Review Updates
PROJECT NAME ADDRESS TYPE STATUS

1) SLCO Pioneer Crossing Ph 1 1280 W Cultural Center Dr Park Resubmittal Required

2) Weston Fields Sub PH1 & Ph2 (58 lots) 6840 W 4100 S Residential Subdivision Final Approval

3) Maverik 2675 S 3200 W Tenant Improvement Waiting for Plans

4) TFC Kowloon Mister LLC 2055 W 3500 S Commercial Final Approval

5) NoYesNo LLC Sewer Connection 2953 S & 2965 S 3600 W Sewer Connection Final Approval

6) Cottages at Pearce Farm (65 Lots) 6765 W 3500 S Residential Subdivision Resubmittal Required

7) WVC & UDOT Safe Sidewalk Extension 3500 S 5200 W Other Resubmittal Required

8)
Premier Truck Group-Collision Center 
Office 2290 S 5370 W Tenant Improvement Final Approval

9) Westways Dental Office 3567 S 5600 W Commercial Resubmittal Required

10) Isaias Flores Sub (2 lots) 2283 W 2313 W 3800 S Residential Subdivision Waiting for Plans

11) Crave Cookies 3723 W 3500 S #160 Tenant Improvement Resubmittal Required

12) Meat Hook BBQ 3380 S Redwood Rd Commercial Resubmittal Required

190



Engineering Report

Plan Review Updates – cont.
PROJECT NAME ADDRESS TYPE STATUS

13)
Cottages on Merry Ln Subdivision (5 
Lots) 3372 S Merry Ln Residential Subdivision Waiting for Plans

14) Alicia's Bakery; West Valley Retail 4960 W 3500 S Commercial Stripmall Resubmittal Required

15) Get Some Cabinets 1024 W Parkway Ave Commercial Waiting on Plans

191



Water Quality Report

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.
Chlorine 2021 0.56 0.41 0.31 0.37 0.33 0.33 0.28 0.25 0.24 0.31
Fluoride 2021 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.66 0.66 0.7 0.68 0.7 0.79 0.77
Chlorine 3-yr Avg. 0.46 0.58 0.63 0.39 0.39 0.35 0.40 0.34 0.37 0.40 0.36 0.39
Fluoride 3-yr Avg. 0.69 0.72 0.57 0.59 0.66 0.70 0.69 0.66 0.66 0.62 0.55 0.67
Chlorine Min. 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Fluoride Min. 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6
Chlor. & Fluor. Max 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

Chlorine and Fluoride Residuals (mg/L)

192



Water Quality Report

Water Quality Complaint Locations – October

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.
Water Quality Complaints 6 20 71 109 14 6 31 20 5 6
Pressure Complaints 6 6 0 8 13 12 14 6 5 1
WQ 3-YR AVG. 59 14 43 68 37 32 62 37 25 27 23 19
Pressure 3-YR AVG. 6 6 8 14 15 28 23 19 7 9 7 7
Total 3-YR AVG. 65 19 51 82 53 60 85 56 32 36 30 26
25% AWWA Benchmark 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
75% AWWA Benchmark 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Water Quality and Pressure Complaints

193


	(1)November 2021 Agenda
	(2)PENDING October 2021 Minutes
	MINUTES OF THE
	GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
	BOARD MEETING
	Trustees Present:

	(3)November Budget Presentation_Combined
	(4)Budget Summary
	(5)Board Meeting Public Comment Form
	(6)Heat flyer
	(7)Water Provider Agreement No Portal FULL (2)
	ATTACHMENT B WATER TYPE AGREEMENT
	Non-Disclosure Agreement w Sig 1-5-2015
	non-disclosure agreement


	(8a)Strategic Initiative Tracking and Performance Reporting - Third Quarter 2021 Update Measures
	(8b)Strategic Initiative Tracking and Performance Reporting - Third Quarter 2021 Update KPIs
	(9)2022 Board Calendar
	Calendar

	(9a)2022 Board Meeting Schedule
	(9b)GHID Calendar
	(9c)2022 Holiday Schedule
	(10)Board Memo - Fraud Risk Assessment
	(11)Board Meeting - Fraud Risk Assessment 11-16-2021
	(12)RFP - Municipal Advisor Award Memo
	(13)October Financial Report
	(14)November Paid Invoice Report
	(15)November Water Systems Board Report
	Water Systems Update 
	Water Systems Update 
	Water Systems Update
	Water Systems Update
	Water Systems Update
	Water Systems Update 
	Water Systems Update 
	Water Systems Update 
	Water Systems Update 
	Water Systems Update 

	(16)November Wastewater Board Report
	Slide Number 1
	Wastewater Maintenance Update 
	Wastewater Maintenance Update 
	Wastewater Maintenance Update 
	Wastewater Maintenance Update 

	(17)November 2021 Ops  Engineering Report
	Water Production  
	Water Production
	Water Production
	Sewer Pumped
	Capital Projects Status
	Slide Number 6
	Capital Projects Status
	Capital Projects Status
	Slide Number 9
	Capital Projects Status
	Capital Projects Status
	Capital Projects Status
	Master Plan Update, Rate Study & Impact Fee Analysis Update
	Capital Projects Status
	Capital Projects Map
	Engineering Report
	Engineering Report
	Water Quality Report
	Slide Number 19




